
 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

1301 81ST AVENUE N.E. 

AGENDA 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Minutes December 7, 2015 

B. Disbursements: 

1.   General Operations Disbursement Claim No. 15-21 – $470,657.13 

2.   Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No. 15-22 - $222,234.08 

C. Budget to Date/Statement of Fund Balance – November 2015 

D. Request for Payment No. 3 North Valley Paving – CSAH 35/Central Avenue 

E. Massage Therapy License 

F. Contractor’s License 

G. Liquor Licenses 

H. Correspondence 

6. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

7. POLICE REPORT 

8. PARKS AND RECREATION REPORT 

9. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

A. Resolution No. 15-34 Adopting Proposed 2015 Taxes Collectable in 2016  

10. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Approval of 2016 Budget 

B.  Accept Proposal from Leo A. Daly for Facility Study/Space Needs Analysis 

11. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

12. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

13. OTHER 

A.  Administrator Reports 

14. ADJOURN 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARING AND 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 





  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on December 7, 2015 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 

P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Mason, Nelson, Wendling and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: Councilmember Nash 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Building Official Brainard;  

Attorney Carson; Engineer Gravel; Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall; Planner 

Carlson; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors: Olivia Alveshere, ABC Newspapers 

 Larry & Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE 

 Dean Sweeney, 7705 Lakeview Lane NE 

 Hans Hansen, 8331 Able Street NE 

  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda - None 

 

5.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – November 16, 2015 

B. Fourth Quarter Billing Payable for 2017 Property Tax Assessment – Ken Tolzmann 

C. Public Right of Way Application – CenterPoint Energy 

D. Approval of Resolution No. 15-30 Establishing Water, Sewer and Water Treatment Plant Rates 

E. Licenses: 

1.  Contractor’s Licenses  2. Dance Licenses 

3.  Used Car Licenses  4.  Tobacco Licenses 

5.  Pawn Shop License  6. Massage Enterprise License 

7.  Massage Therapist – Individual License 

F. Sign Permit Application 

G. Correspondence 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ROLL 

CALL VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 December 7, 2015 

 

6.  Discussion From The Floor  

 

Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE, inquired on the new changes to the Zoning Code.  Ms. Pederson inquired 

if current businesses who have Special Use Permits are “grandfathered” in for existing stipulations.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained that Special Use Permits that were previously granted and are currently in 

effect are not impacted by the new Code. He stated that the Special Use Permit is only changing the name to 

Conditional Use Permit.  He stated that a SUP expires one year after the use is discontinued.  

 

Ms. Pederson inquired what more can be done to enforce the SUP conditions, as she feels there needs to be 

more code enforcement on businesses who are constant violators of their SUP. 

 

He stated in the future the City hopes to work with the property owner to issue a CUP for the entire building to 

have the conditions apply to all the businesses if multiple businesses are in a building. He explained that if one 

CUP is issued for the building, it will make enforcement of the CUP simpler. 

 

Dean Sweeney, 7705 Lakeview Lane NE, inquired if there are any provisions on rentals property that has 

changed in the new Zoning Code. He stated that he has many concerns with rental property in his neighborhood.  

Administrator Buchholtz stated that not a lot of time was taken in reviewing the rental portion of the code. He 

stated that most of the changes occurred with the land usage and improvements to commercial areas.  He stated 

that he would be willing to meet with Mr. Sweeney regarding his concerns with rental properties. 

 

Mr. Sweeney stated that he was not aware that changes were being made to the existing code.  Administrator 

Buchholtz stated that articles regarding the changes on the code were published in the City newsletter, on the 

City website and an open house was held for feedback. He stated that a public hearing was held regarding the 

code in November.  He explained the new code provided updates to the existing code, which, in some areas, 

were out of date. He stated that the Code is a living document and as community needs change, the Code will 

be amended to reflect these changing community needs. 

 

Mr. Sweeney inquired how Code Enforcement is handled with rental properties. Building Official Brainard 

stated that he enforces the basic safety items of rental properties and not the behavioral issues of a rental 

property. He stated that the Police Department has a program called “Three Strikes” to control behavioral issues 

at a property. 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft provided an explanation on the Three Strikes Program. He stated that if the police are 

called to the property for issues such as disturbance, domestic violence or violation of ordinances more than 

three times, the City can revoke the rental license from the property. Chief Ebeltoft stated that if there is a 

disturbance occurring at a property, the residents should call the police.  

 

Mr. Sweeney stated that he feels the lighted sign at the liquor store is a distraction to drivers on Highway 65 

and expressed his concern with the prices at the liquor store.  Councilmember Nelson stated that Mayor Hansen 

has been working hard to improve liquor store operations and to make the store more appealing.  He stated that 

the City is starting to see results from these changes.   

 

7.  Public Works Report 

 

Public Works Director Randall reported that the Public Works Department swept the parks, blew out the 

sprinkler systems and installed numerous new trees including four at the new Public Works Garage.  He stated 

that Christmas decorations and lights have been placed at the parks and fire hydrants have been drained for the 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 December 7, 2015 

 

winter months.  He reported he met with the City of Fridley regarding the realignment of Osborne Road and 

completed dumpster enclosures at the liquor store and city hall.  

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired on the correspondence letter from the MN Health Department regarding 

the testing levels of the water.  Mr. Randall stated that the testing was completed during a time a pump had 

failed and was shut off at the time of testing. He stated that the pump is back online and water us testing is at 

acceptable levels. 

 

8. Code Enforcement Report 

 

Building Official Brainard reported that he attended the Council meetings on November 1st and 16th; a 

Department Head meeting on November 3rd and 17th; a Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 

November 23rd; a Fire Chiefs walk-through of Substance Church on November 24th; an evaluation meeting for 

Facility Assessment & Needs RFP on November 17th; a North Suburban Code Officials meeting on November 

11th and the North Suburban Building Official’s meeting on November 24th. 

 

Mr. Brainard stated that in November 2015, 44 permits were issued.  He reported that he conducted 113 

inspections in November. 

 

Mr. Brainard reported that the November 2015 vacancy listing shows that there are 20 vacant/foreclosed 

residential properties currently posted and/or soon posted by the Code Enforcement Department, which remains 

the same from last month. There are three vacant/foreclosed commercial properties, which remains the same 

from last month; and 16 residential properties currently occupied and ready for Sheriff sale, which remains the 

same from last month.  He reported that five violation notices and four administrative offense tickets were 

issued in November by the Code Enforcement Department.  

 

Mr. Brainard provided a Christmas Tree Fact Sheet reminding of the use and display of natural or resin-bearing 

Christmas trees. 

 

9.  Public Hearing 

 

A. 2016 Truth in Taxation Hearing 

 

Mayor Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:35 PM to discuss the 2016 proposed budget and tax levy. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reviewed the following visuals: 

 Graphs showing the 2015 to 2016 Revenue and Expenditure Comparisons 

 Pie Chart for 2016 Revenues 

 Pie Chart for 2016 Expenditures 

 2016 Budget Highlights 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated the proposed levy increase is 3.36 %, of which the General Government levy 

will increase by 5.31%. He noted this proposed levy is still $139,694 less than the 2007 levy.  He stated that 

overall General Fund spending is set to increase by 2.74%. He stated that the City’s tax rate will increase 

slightly from 52.877% in 2015 to 54.56% in 2016.  He reported that the City will be receiving Local 

Government Aid for the 3rd time in 12 years and outlined how these will be used as follows: 1.) fund general 

fund expenditures; 2.) buy down debt service levy; 3.) purchase capital equipment; 4.) fund State/Federal storm 

water mandates; and 5.) special projects. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 December 7, 2015 

 

Mr. Sweeney, 7705 Lakeview Lane NE, stated that he is aware of many grants that are available to cities and 

he inquired who is responsible for applying for these grants and available monies in the city.  Mayor Hansen 

stated that the city staff does an excellent job of applying for grants as time permits and grants have been 

received and used to purchase equipment for various departments. 

 

Mayor Hansen asked for comments from the floor. Hearing none, the public hearing was closed at 7:55 PM. 

 

10.  Ordinances and Resolutions 

 

A.  Resolution No. 15-29 Adopting CenturyLink Franchise and Authorizing Summary Publication of   

      Ordinance No. 418 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that CenturyLink has submitted an application for a cable TV franchise 

within the city limits of Spring Lake Park.  He stated that the North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

conducted a public hearing on the franchise application and authorized the negotiation of a franchise agreement 

with CenturyLink.  He stated the franchise agreement has been negotiated and approved by the Commission. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City Council held its own public hearing on the proposed franchise 

ordinance on November 16, 2015.  He stated that other than comments from a representative of CenturyLink 

in support of the franchise, no additional pubic feedback was received. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that Resolution No. 15-29 will do the following: 

 1. Adopt findings of fact in support of granting a cable television franchise to CenturyLink. 

 2. Adopt Ordinance No. 418 which would grant a cable television franchise to CenturyLink. 

 3. Authorize summary publication of Ordinance No. 418. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO ADOPT CENTURYLINK FRANCHISE AND AUTHORIZE 

SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 418. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

B.  Ordinance No. 419 Adopting New Zoning Ordinance 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented Ordinance 419, he stated that it is an Ordinance Repealing and Replacing 

Chapter 152, Signs and Billboards, with a new Chapter 152, Subdivision Control; Repealing and Replacing 

Chapter 153, Antennas and Towers, with a new Chapter 153, Zoning; Repealing and Replacing Chapter 154, 

Mobile Homes and Mobile Home Parks, with a new Chapter 154, Antennas and Towers; Repealing and 

Replacing Chapter 155, Subdivision Control, with a new Chapter 155, Mobile Homes and Mobile Home Parks; 

and Repealing Chapter 156, Zoning. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented Ordinance Number 419 to the Council. He reported that the ordinance is a 

year’s worth of work by the Planning and Zoning Commission, City staff, and City Planner Phil Carlson. He 

stated the goal of the zoning ordinance update process was to study the City’s existing land use ordinances and 

recommend updates to the City Council to meet current and emerging needs and to ensure consistency with the 

City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 December 7, 2015 

 

City Planner Carlson provided a brief summary of the changes. He stated that while the new land use ordinance 

has too many specific revisions to review at the meeting, he did highlight the main items that were addressed: 

 

1. Special Uses:  Mr. Carlson explained that the term “special uses” in the zoning code have been changed 

to a more common term, “conditional uses”, and the application is now for a conditional use permit (CUP), 

not a special use permit. 

 

2.  Variance Committee:  Mr. Carlson reported that the existing zoning code requires approval of variances 

by a “Variance Committee”. He stated that the new language has been changed to have the approval process 

for variances is to require recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission with final approval 

the full City Council. 

 

3.  Signage:  Mr. Carlson stated that the language was reviewed pertaining to a number of types of signs, 

with the largest revision being for dynamic signs, which are digital/electrical signs. 

 

4.  Site and Building Design Standards:  Mr. Carlson reported that new language and standards pertaining 

to site and building design was added to the proposed code. He provided the examples of landscaping and 

green space, parking lot design and lighting standards, lot coverage, and impervious surface requirements. 

 

5.  Wireless Communication/Cell Towers:  Mr. Carlson reported that a new section has been added on 

wireless communication towers requiring wireless communication carriers to co-locate on shared towers. 

 

6.  PUD Ordinance:  Mr. Carlson explained the new planned unit development (PUD) ordinance, making 

PUDs a zoning district, not a special use permit.  He stated that there is also language clarifying the process 

and benefits to be gained with PUDs. 

 

7.  New Uses:  Mr. Carlson stated that the Commission investigated several uses not currently addressed in 

the zoning code that are growing in popularity, such as food trucks, micro-breweries, and chickens in 

residential neighborhoods.  He reported that the Commission decided that language related to the 

microbreweries and taprooms would be added to the proposed code. 

 

8.  Vehicles in Apartment Parking Lots:  Mr. Carlson reported that the Commission has clarified language 

regulating the types of vehicles and equipment allowed to be stores in apartment parking lots and the length 

of time allowed.  He stated that the issue was that trucks and other large vehicles were being stored in 

apartment parking lots, which was not the City’s intent. 

 

9.  Non-conforming uses:  Mr. Carlson explained that the draft code includes revised language for the 

sections of the code dealing with non-conforming uses to conform with changes in State law that took effect 

in 2004. 

 

10.  Residence Districts:  He stated that several revisions were made to the number and type of residential 

districts and density standards. He stated that the City’s six residential zoning districts have now been 

consolidated into three districts.  

 

11.  Commercial, Industrial, PUD Districts:  Mr. Carlson explained that the three commercial districts- 

C-1, C-2 and C-3 remain as is.  He stated that the I-1 district was renamed from “Industrial/Commercial” 

to “Light Industrial” to reflect its predominately industrial character, but also to emphasize that it does not 

accommodate heavy industry. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 December 7, 2015 

 

12.  New Subdivision Code:  Mr. Carlson stated that a significantly revised Subdivision chapter was added 

which brought the code up to date in a number of ways in terms of process and submission requirements. 

 

13. Planning and Zoning Commission becomes Planning Commission:  Mr. Carlson stated that the Planning 

body for the City is referenced by three different names in various parts of City materials. He stated that 

noted in State Statute, “Planning Commission”, was selected. 

 

14. “Other uses” catch-all phrase was removed:  Mr. Carlson stated that the Table of Uses in Appendix D 

has a phrase at the end of the commercial and industrial uses that include “Other uses the Council determines 

to be compatible with existing and permitted uses in this district”.  He reported that the Commission felt 

this statement to be overly broad and imprecise, and removed it. 

 

15.  Reformatting:  Mr. Carlson mentions that several changes were made to the order of the various 

chapters and to some of the provisions within the chapters to improve the organization of the Code. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on 

November 23, 2015 on the proposed changes to the land use ordinances.  He reported that two comments 

on the proposed code were received – one from Robert Nelson and one from Larry and Jean Pederson. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the comment from Mr. Nelson referred to the change in the language 

regulating the types of vehicles and equipment allowed to be stored in apartment parking lots.  He stated 

that Mr. Nelson expressed his opinion that the new language was overly restrictive and the code issue was 

better dealt with by apartment management. Administrator Buchholtz stated that the Planning and Zoning 

Commission had heard from Building Official Brainard that the City has received a lot of complaints of 

boats, RVs and trailers parked in apartment parking lots, creating a negative aesthetic for the rental property 

and reducing the number of parking spots for apartment residents and guests.  He stated that the Planning 

and Zoning Commission agreed with staff’s recommendation and clarified the language.  He reported that 

the Commission declined to make any changes to this section of the Code. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated the comment from Mr. and Mrs. Pederson related to conditional use 

permits.  He stated that the Commission felt the new performance standards outlined in the City Code will 

result in a better conditional use permit process and better outcomes.  He stated that the Commission agreed 

that if there are specific problems in the future, the Commission would study approval of the land use 

ordinances to the City Council. 

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that he was impressed and happy to see the Code updates. He stated that the 

former wording in the Code was frustrating with what was and was not allowed. Planner Carlson stated that 

it was good that new Code was developed and changes were made. He suggested a yearly review would be 

beneficial to the City.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that many complaints have been received regarding the parking of boats 

and RVs in apartment lots. He stated that the proposed language in the Code refers to the parking of these 

vehicles in the R-1 zoning districts and not in the other zoning districts. 

Building Official Brainard stated that he received an email from Councilmember Nash inquiring on the 

number of complaints received.  Mr. Brainard reviewed the complaints and noted that all the apartments 

have detached garages and no extra paved areas for extra storage. He also reported that Mounds View and 

Blaine do not allow storage of recreational vehicles at apartment buildings. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 December 7, 2015 

 

Mayor Hansen suggested that a workshop session be scheduled with staff to discuss changes of the language 

of Section 156.027 to allow the parking of recreational vehicles in apartment buildings. The Council was 

in agreement. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 419 WITH THE 

EXCEPTION THAT LANGUAGE CHANGES SPECIFIED IN 153.065 REVERT BACK TO EXISTING 

LANGUAGE. ROLL CALL VOTE. ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C.  Resolution No. 15-31 Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance No. 419 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN AUTHORIZING SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF 

ORDINANCE NO. 419 ADOPTING NEW ZONING ORDINANCE. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D.  Ordinance No. 420 Adopting an Ordinance Regulating Land Use by Establishing a Floodplain Management    

      District 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has approved 

new Flood Insurance Rate Maps for cities within in Anoka County that will take effect on December 16, 2015.  

He stated that previously, the City did not have any lands located within a floodplain.  He stated that the new 

Flood Insurance Rate Maps now show a small floodplain area abutting Laddie Lake. He reported that in order 

for residents and businesses to continue to participate in National Flood Insurance Program, the City must adopt 

a floodplain ordinance by December 16, 2015. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained that the only areas of floodplain within the City are on the former Nicklow 

property (the site of Laddie Lake Pub, which the City owns) and the rear yards of properties along Cottagewood 

Drive.  He stated that since this newly identified floodplain area has very little impact on the future 

development/redevelopment of these areas, City staff chose to recommend adoption of the more 

streamlined/restrictive ordinance. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated the proposed ordinance governs activities that can occur within the floodplain.  

He reported that City Planner Carlson reviewed the draft ordinance and noted that it is similar to floodplain 

ordinances adopted in other communities. He stated that the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources has 

also reviewed the draft ordinance and has granted conditional approval. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 

November 23, 2015 to consider that proposed floodplain ordinance.  He stated that Councilmember Wendling 

inquired as the square footage of the floodplain within Spring Lake Park and the area is +/- 1,370 square feet 

for the former Nicklow property and +/- 45,000 square feet on the four properties along Cottagewood Drive.  

He stated that after the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 

recommended approval of the proposed floodplain ordinance to the City Council. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 420 ADOPTING 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING LAND USE BY ESTABLISHING A FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT 

DISTRICT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 December 7, 2015 

 

E.  Resolution No. 15-32 Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance No. 420 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN AUTHORIZING SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF 

ORDINANCE NO. 420 REGULATING LAND USE BY ESTABLISHING A FLOODPLAIN 

MANAGEMENT DISTRICT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

F.  Ordinance No. 421 Adopting an Ordinance Adopting a Fee Schedule for the City of Spring Lake Park 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the 2016 Fee Schedule for City Council adoption.  He stated that there are 

several fees that were either added to the fee schedule or increased. He highlighted the changes to the schedule, 

including: 1.) escrows were added to many of the City’s zoning/development fees; 2.) the Park Dedication fee 

for Commercial/Industrial properties was reduced from 7.5% of fair market value unimproved land to 3% of 

fair market value; 3.) the Park Dedication fee for Residential will increase from $1,000 per unit to $1,897 per 

unit; 4.) Variance Fees for R-1 properties increased due to a change in process from a Variance Committee to 

full Planning Commission review; 5.) new fee was added for those requesting zoning letters from City staff; 

6.) the cost to process a major subdivision was changed from $250.00 plus $5/lot to a flat fee of $400 plus a 

$5,000 escrow; 7.) new liquor licenses were added to reflect the licenses authorized by the new liquor 

ordinance; 8.) an animal impound fee of $50 was added; 9.) a $10/rostered player/sports season fee was added 

for athletic field use by youth sports teams; 10.) Water Availability charge was increased from $750 per unit to 

$900 per unit and 11.) increase the fees for 5/8” water meter from $25.00 to $25.00 , 3/4” to 1” meter from 

$35.00 to $50.00 and over 1” meter from $50.00 to $100.00. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 421 ADOPTING 

A FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

 

G.  Resolution No. 15-33 Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance No. 421 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN AUTHORIZING SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF 

ORDINANCE NO. 421 ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

11.  New Business 

 

A.  Authorize Bids Sewer Sliplining Project 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that in 2012 the City Council asked Public Works and Engineering to develop a long-

term plan for sanitary sewer lining.  He stated that the city established a seven to ten year lining program.  He 

stated that the lining program places a priority on the larger diameter sewers and on the areas where older 

sewers and higher ground water are known to exist.  He stated the seven to ten year program is set up to try to 

keep the annual lining projects within a cost range of $150,000 to $200,000. 

 

Mr. Gravel stated that Public Works Director has determined properties for lining in 2016.  He stated that 

proposed 2016 work generally includes the following streets/areas: 

 

 CSAH 35/Old Central Avenue 

 Easement area between TH 65 (lift station 2) and Old Central Avenue 

 Possible other segments as directed by the Public Works Director as the budget allows. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 9 December 7, 2015 

 

Mr. Gravel reported the estimated construction cost for the 2016 sewer lining project is $175,000.  He stated 

that the City Council order preparation of plans and specifications and authorize bidding for the 2016 Sanitary 

Sewer Lining Project. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if any technology has been developed to line water main lines.  Public Works 

Director Randall stated that technology is progressing on lining water mains, but improvements are still needed 

at the connection of the water main and the service.   

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO AUTHORIZE PREPARATION OF PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS AND AUTHORIZE BIDDING FOR THE 2016 SANITARY SEWER LINING 

PROJECT.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Authorize Bids for Seal Coat Project 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that as part of ongoing street maintenances, the City completes an annual street 

maintenance project consisting of crack repair and seal coating.  He stated that seal coating included placing 

bituminous emulsion and small aggregate on the street surface. 

 

Mr. Gravel stated that Engineering has reviewed the street system history with the Public Works Director to 

establish priority streets to crack seal and seal coat treatment in 2016.  He reported the target streets to be 

completed generally include the streets that received a seal coat in 2006.  He stated the project area is essentially 

the area bounded by Able Street, 81st Avenue, and Middletown Road. He explained the actual final list may be 

adjusted based on final design and/or budget limits. 

 

Mr. Gravel stated that an alternative bid to include parking lots at city facilities may also be included in this 

project.  He stated the estimated construction cost is less than $100,000. He explained that the project schedule 

includes receiving bids this coming winter and the Council will be asked to consider award Construction 

Contract in March.  

 

Mr. Gravel requested that the City Council authorize preparation of plans/specifications and bidding for the 

2016 Seal Coat and Crack Repair project. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO AUTHORIZE PREPARATION OF PLANS AND BIDDING 

FOR SEAL COAT PROJECT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

12.  Engineer’s Report - None 

 

13.  Attorney’s Report - None 

 

14.  Reports – None 

 

15. Other 

 

A.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the North Metro Cable Operations Committee has been discussing an 

equipment certificate to replace equipment at North Metro TV. He stated the certificate will be used to purchase 

new equipment to allow broadcasting of local programs in High Definition.  He stated that the equipment 

certificate will have no impact to the franchise fees. He informed the Council that a resolution will be presented 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 10 December 7, 2015 

 

to them in 2016. 

 

B.  Close Meeting to Discuss Labor Negotiation Strategies 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO CLOSE REGULAR MEETING TO DISCUSS LABOR 

NEGOTIATIONS STRATEGIES.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was recessed at 8:54 P.M. 

 

Mayor Hansen reconvened the meeting at 9:15 P.M. 

 

16.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER MASON TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:17 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

















 





 





























 

















 



 

 

 

Police Report 

November 2015 

Submitted for Council Meeting – December 21, 2015 

 

The Spring Lake Park Police Department continue to respond for calls for service made by our residents 

to the police department and Anoka County Dispatch. Due to transitioning to our new Public Safety Data 

Records System in November, we continue to work out the kinks in the system and obtain the necessary 

training to fully utilize the system capabilities. It is for this reason, I am not able to provide a more 

detailed statistical report for the number of calls for service that have been handled for the month of 

November 2015.  

As we become more accustomed to and learn the new system, I will be able to provide more statistical 

information.  

Our School Resource Officer, Officer Fiske reports handling nine calls for service at our local schools, 

along with have thirteen student contacts, eight escorts and ten follow up investigations to school 

related issues. Officer Fiske did note that she was on vacation from November 6th thru November 13th 

and school was out of session on November 26th and November 27th for Thanksgiving. Officer Fiske 

advised that thefts were done this month at the school but one student was charged with “Possession of 

a Dangerous Weapon (Knife) on School grounds. For further details see Officer Fiske’s attached report.  

Investigator Baker reports handling a case load of fifty-five cases for the month of November. Thirty-

seven of these cases were felony in nature, eight of these cases were gross misdemeanor in nature and 

ten of the cases were misdemeanor in nature. Investigator Baker did note that a suspect in a Spring Lake 

Park Armed Robbery Case was identified through the use of “Facebook” and the Minneapolis Gang Task 

Force. A subsequent search warrant from Minneapolis PD was executed at the suspect’s girlfriends 

residence in Spring Lake Park looking for stolen guns and property. Investigator Baker advised that the 

suspect was arrested in Brooklyn Park for another armed robbery and is currently in custody for those 

charges and will then be charged for the Spring Lake Park Armed Robbery Case. The same suspect in also 



a person of interest in several other robberies cases. For further details see Investigator Baker’s 

attached report.  

With cold weather settling in the ability of the police department to deploy the speed trailer will be 

coming an end until the weather warms up. Since the speed trailer works on batteries, the cold weather 

will reduce the duration of time the trailer will function properly and may cause battery damage. 

However for the month of November we were able to deploy the speed trailer at three different 

locations throughout the city as weather allowed.  

 The Spring Lake Park Police Department Office Staff remain steadfast in their duties, typing and imaging 

reports, filing, answering and dispensing phone calls for service and information, while continuing to 

address citizen concerns at the “Police Public Walk up Window”, along with other duties that may be 

assigned on a daily basis.  

The month of November has been a busy month for myself as well, besides handling the day to day 

operations of the police department, I attended numerous meetings throughout the month, along with 

overseeing the continuation of the hiring process for the vacant police officers position. We have 

completed the application process, written portion of the testing, candidate interviews and are currently 

working through the background process of the top three candidates. It is our intent to bring forth the 

name of the recommended police officer candidate in the near future to the City Council for a 

conditional job offer.  

This will conclude my report for the month.  

Are there any questions.  

  



Spring Lake Park Police Department 
Investigations Monthly Report 

 

 
Investigator 

Brad Baker 

 

November 2015 
 

Total Case Load 
 

Case Load by Level of Offense: 55 
 

Felony    37 

Gross Misdemeanor  8 

Misdemeanor   10 

 

Case Dispositions: 
 

County Attorney    4 

Juvenile County Attorney  1 

City Attorney    1 

Forward to Other Agency  1 

SLP Liaison    0 

Carried Over    41 

Unfounded     0 

Exceptionally Cleared   2 

Closed/Inactive    5 

 

                  Forfeitures: 
Active Forfeitures   6 

Forfeitures Closed   0 

 

Notes:        



Spring Lake Park Police / School Resource Officer Report 
November 1, 2015 

 

 

Incidents by School Location Reports (ICRs) Student Contacts* Escorts/Other Follow Up Inv. 

Spring Lake Park High School 7 13 8 8 

Discovery Days (pre-school)     

Lighthouse School     

Park Terrace Elementary School     

District Office     

Able and Terrace Parks (School Related)     

School Related     

Miscellaneous Locations 2   2 

Totals: 9 13 8 10 

 

 

Breakdown of Reports (ICRs)  

Theft reports (cellphones, iPods, bikes, etc…) 3 

Students charged with Assault or Disorderly Conduct  

Students charged with other crimes 1 

Non-students Charged  

Warrant Arrests  

Miscellaneous reports 5 

 



Spring Lake Park Police / School Resource Officer Report 
November 1, 2015 

 

 

 



 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-34 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PROPOSED 2015 TAXES COLLECTABLE IN 2016 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka and 

Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, that the following sums of money be levied for the current year, 

collectable in 2014, upon the taxable property in said City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota: 

 

General Revenue     $2,771,985 

2013A G.O. Equipment Certificate   $   204,000 

TOTAL LEVY:     $2,975,985 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk of the City of Spring Lake Park is 

hereby instructed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to the County Auditors of Anoka 

and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota; and 

 

 

The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by . 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye:  Councilmembers  

 

And the following voted nay:  

 

Whereupon the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this 21st day of 

December, 2015. 

 

 

            

      Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 

 

 

 

  



State of Minnesota   ) 

Counties of Anoka and Ramsey )ss 

City of Spring Lake Park  ) 

 

I, Daniel R. Buchholtz, duly appointed and qualified Assistant City Administrator in and for the 

City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 15-34, A Resolution Adopting Proposed 

2015 Taxes Collectable in 2016, adopted by the Spring Lake Park City Council at their regular 

meeting on the 21st day of December 2015. 

 

 

              

       Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

       Dated:       

        



 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: 2016 BUDGET 

DATE: DECEMBER 14, 2015 

 

Over the past several months, the City Council and staff have worked to draft a balanced 2016 

budget.  Staff is pleased to present the following 2016 budget to the City Council for formal 

approval. 

 

As noted at the Truth in Taxation hearing, the proposed general fund budget for the City of Spring 

Lake Park is $4,242,858, an increase of 2.74% from 2015.  This budget increase is due primarily 

to employee wages, increased fire protection costs, implementation of the Public Safety Data 

System and increased utility costs. 

 

The 2016 payable property tax levy is $2,975,985, an increase of 5.31% from 2015.  The portion 

of the tax levy for government operations is $2,771,985.  Intergovernmental revenue, permit and 

license fees, charges for services, miscellaneous revenues and interfund transfers cover the 

remaining portion of the budget.  The portion of the tax levy for debt service is $204,000, which 

covers the 2014-2015 Street Improvement Project bond and the 2013 Equipment Certificate. 

 

I have attached the 2016 budget for your review. 

 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the 2016 budget as presented.   

 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





Page R-1.1

2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF REVENUES: Revised-10/12/15
2014 2015 2016

TAX LEVY: ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

31010 Current Taxes (Includes Fiscal Disparities) 2,551,917.05$  2,681,846$        2,771,985$     
    Anoka & Ramsey Counties

31020 Delinquent Taxes Received 29,572.20$       
31910 Penalties & Interest 4,048.92$         

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE:

STATE:

33401 Local Government Aid 285,196.00$     323,491$           335,218$        
33404 PERA Increase Aid 5,775.00$         5,775$               5,775$            
33407 State Fire Aid -$                      422,930$           422,930$        
33416 Police Training Reimbursement 3,539.91$         3,600$               3,600$            
33421 Insurance Premium-Police 83,775.83$       73,000$             75,000$          

 (Based on the portion we pay into
    PERA benefits)
35101 Court Fines 83,461.83$       100,000$           90,000$          

 (Anoka Co-State disburses funds)

PERMIT AND LICENSES:

32110 Liquor,Wine,Non-Intox & Club Lic 34,633.34$       23,300$             32,800$          
32179 Pawn Shop Licenses & Investigation Fee 6,350.60$         6,252$               6,252$            
32180 Cigarette,Dance,Used Car & Misc 5,050.00$         5,400$               5,200$            
32181 Sign Permits 9,395.00$         5,500$               5,500$            
32208 Contractors Licenses 7,130.00$         6,500$               6,500$            
32210 Building Permits 52,004.98$       50,000$             55,000$          
32211 Building Permit Surcharges 1,947.48$         2,000$               3,000$            
32230 Plumbing Permits 3,380.92$         4,000$               4,000$            
32231 Plumbing Permit Surcharges 285.00$            350$                  300$               
32232 Heating & A/C Permits 5,533.90$         6,000$               8,000$            
32233 Heating & A/C Surcharges 455.00$            400$                  400$               
32240 Dog and Cat Registrations 396.00$            550$                  500$               
32260 Certificates of Occupancy 3,000.00$         5,000$               2,000$            
32261 Vacant Property Registration 4,800.00$         6,000$               4,000$            
32262 Solicitors Licenses 300.00$            -$                   -$                

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK



2016  BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF REVENUES: Page R-1.2

Revised-10/12/15
2014 2015 2016

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES:

34103 SUP, Zoning, Var. & Subd. 5,695.00$         1,800$               1,800$            
34104 Plan Review Fees 9,997.44$         10,000$             12,000$          
34105 Sale of Maps, Documents, Copies 211.00$            300$                  300$               
34107 Assessment Searches 90.00$              200$                  100$               
34108 Admin. SAC Charges 35.00$              70$                    70$                 
34109 Filing Fees 10.00$              -$                   60$                 
34111 Adm. Gambling Fees 31,538.62$       31,000$             32,554$          
34115 Gun Range Facility Use 300.00$            -$                   -$                
34201 Police & Fire Alarms 1,575.00$         2,000$               1,500$            
34204 Rental Housing Registration 48,915.00$       55,000$             55,000$          
34205 Right Of Way Applications 6,751.00$         3,500$               3,500$            
34949 Restitution 386.41$            -$                   -$                

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES:
 
34801 Insurance Dividends 8,193.00$         8,000$               8,000$            
34950 Refund and Reim 2,129.91$         4,000$               4,000$            
35102 Adm. Offense Fines 3,830.11$         4,000$               4,000$            
35348 Property Room Revenue 147.86$            -$                   -$                
35349 MN Driving Diversion Program 2,000.00$         -$                   500$               
35350 Detox Transportation Reim 120.00$            200$                  200$               
36210 Interest Earned 4,296.00$         20,000$             20,000$          
36901 ISD 16 - Liaison Officer 69,450.00$       70,839$             72,964$          
39100 CPL-Reim for City services 3,313.36$         4,500$               4,500$            
39101 Recycle Park Program -$                      -$                   -$                

INTERFUND TRANSFERS:

39202 Transfer from Public Utilities 44,970.00$       45,000$             46,350$          
39203 Transfer from Liquor Fund 75,000.00$       75,000$             75,000$          
39206 Transfer from Recycling Fund 2,500.00$         2,500$               2,500$            
39207 Transfer from Recreation 60,000.00$       60,000$             60,000$          

TOTAL 2016 REVENUES 3,563,403.67$  4,129,803$        4,242,858$     



Page E-1.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
CITY COUNCIL-41110 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1030 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits 30,610.92$   36,273$       31,296$       
a)  Mayor 7,453$                
b)  Councilmembers 23,843$              

   
1211 PERA 1,238.90$     1,768$         1,685$         

a)  Defined Contribution Plan

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 2,341.63$     2,775$         2,395$         
a)  FICA (6.2% x $31,296) 1,941$                
b)  Medicare (1.45% x $31,296) 454$                   

`
1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 76.02$          75$              80$              

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 78.48$          511$            511$            
a)  Budget Notebooks & Dividers 233$                   
b)  Business Cards & I.D. Badges 139$                   
c)  Miscellaneous 139$                   

3310 TRAVEL EXPENSE 174.59$        250$            250$            

3500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 1,288.89$     1,250$         1,550$         
a)  Ordinances & Resolutions 1,200$                
b)  Special Meetings, etc. 100$                   
c)  Assessment Notices 100$                   
d)  Legal Notices 150$                   

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 294.00$        2,010$         2,010$         
a)  LMC Annual Conference 600$                   
b)  Conference for Newly Elected Officials 600$                   
c)  Conference for Experienced Officials 300$                   
d)  Municipals Banquets 60$                     
e)  North Metro Mayors Board Mtgs 200$                   
f)   Annual Mayor's Conference 250$                   

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,208.00$     9,065$         8,774$         
a)  LMC Dues 6,624$                
b)  North Metro Mayors 2,080$                
c)  MN Mayors Assn 20$                     
d)  MN Storm Water Coalition -$                    
e)  Metro Cities Fee Survey 50$                     

4955 DISCRETIONARY FUNDS 569.44$        650$            5,150$         
a)  Memorials/Miscellaneous 250$                   
b)  Council/Staff Retreat 200$                   
c)  Parade Candy/Parade Banner 500$                   
d)  Council Chairs 4,200$                

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL 44,880.87$   54,627$       53,701$       

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK





Page E-2.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/6/15

2014 2015 2016
ADMINISTRATION-41400 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits/2016 Steps 294,216.67$ 312,200$  291,735$     
a)  Full time Salaries 290,535$   
b)  Administrator's Deferred Comp. Contrib. 1,200$       

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$              2,450$      2,450$         
      

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 21,150.63$   23,415$    21,880$       
a)  Coordinated 7.5% 291,735$      

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 21,195.40$   24,070$    22,505$       
a)  FICA 6.2% 294,185$      18,239$     
b)  Medicare 1.45% 294,185$      4,266$       

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 59,978.48$   59,500$    54,181$       

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 268.86$        270$         247$            

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 1,385.77$     2,300$      2,500$         
a)  Premium 1,500$       
b)  Deductible 1,000$       

2000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,369.00$     3,715$      3,715$         
a)  Copy/Computer/FAX Paper 1,020$       
b)  Office Supplies 464$          
c)  Ink Cartridges (B&W, Color) 651$          
d)  Labels 93$            
e)  Data Cartridges 164$          
f)   Storage Boxes 187$          
g)  Toner (B&W, Color) 858$          
h)  Calendars 139$          
i)   Cash Register Tape/Kroy Tape 139$          

2030 PRINTED FORMS 1,012.85$     1,444$      1,377$         
a)  Checks/Envelopes 417$          
b)  Minute Books (2) 213$          
c)  Special Assess. Forms 47$            
d)  Stationery/Envelopes 300$          
e)  Stationery/Envelope Shells 300$          
f)   Business Cards 100$          
g)  Misc. Printing -$          

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 542.72$        446$         625$            
a)  Dog/Cat Receipt Books & Tags 75$            
b)  City Maps -$          
c)  Reverse Directory 500$          
d)  Miscellaneous 50$            



Page E-2.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/6/15

2014 2015 2016
ADMINISTRATION-41400 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2220 POSTAGE 3,277.17$     3,445$      3,445$         
a)  Postage 3,000$       
b)  Monthly Postage Software Fee 195$          
       ($15.99 x 12)
c)  Labels 250$          

3210 CELL PHONE 661.18$        800$         800$            

3310 TRAVEL EXPENSE 3,256.57$     3,300$      3,300$         
a)  Staff Mileage 300$          
b)  Administrator's Car Allowance  $250/mo 3,000$       

3410 EMPLOYMENT ADVERTISING -$              -$          -$             

3500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 123.00$        360$         360$            
a)  Financial Report 100$          
b)  Budget Summary 140$          
c)  Truth in Taxation 120$          

3550 COUNTY FEE FOR SERVICE 2,072.69$     2,500$      2,500$         
a)  Special Assessment & TNT Charges
     1)  Anoka County 2,450$       
     2)  Ramsey County 50$            

4050 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 5,496.50$     6,519$      6,519$         
a)  Copy Machine Maintenance 3,179$       
b)  USTI - Software Support 920$          
c)  Document Imaging (Laser Fiche) 2,120$       
d)  Annual charge for color copies-overage 300$          

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 4,401.05$     5,935$      5,935$         
a)  MCFOA Annual Conf./Meetings 1,100$       
b)  IIMC Annual Conference 2,200$       
c)  LMC Annual Conference -$          
d)  MCFOA Advanced Institute 300$          
e)  Municipals Banquets (1 per year) 250$          
f)   LMC Loss Control Workshop 25$            
g)  MN GFOA Conference 600$          
h)  USTI Staff Training ($1,200 paid by P.U.) 960$          
i)   Municipal Clerk's Academy 500$          
j)   Miscellaneous -$          



Page E-2.3
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/6/15

2014 2015 2016
ADMINISTRATION-41400 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 479.70$        560$         570$            
a)  IIMC 145$          
b)  Municipals 25$            
c)  Sam's Club 35$            
d)  MCFOA 70$            
e)  MN GFOA 60$            
f)   Zip 4 Directories 50$            
g)  LMC City Official Directory 55$            
h)  Wells Fargo Credit Card 10$            
i)   MCMA 120$          
j)   Discretionary Funds -$          

4500 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,709.85$     4,450$      5,345$         
a)  Shredding Service 400$          
b)  Northland Securities 2,450$       
           Continuing Disclosure Reports
c)  Codification of City Code Supplements 1,500$       
d)  Online Hosting of City Code 495$          
d)  Contingency 500$          

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$              1,944$      -$             

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 425,598.09$ $459,623 429,989$     





Page E-3.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
ASSESSOR-41500 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 35,270.00$   35,500$    35,500$       
a) Kenneth A. Tolzmann Contract





Page E-4.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
AUDIT & FINANCIAL-41540 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

3010 AUDIT EXPENSE 8,700.00$     9,050$      9,415$         





Page E-5.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
I T DEPARTMENT-41600 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 22,531.30$   22,358$    23,490$       
a)  350 hrs  ($60/hour) 21,000$              
b)  Online Storage 30$                     
c)  Comcast High Speed Internet $50/month 600$                   
d)  SLPMN.org Domain 20$                     
e)  E-mail Hosting Plan 180$                   
f)  Constant Contact ($20/month) 240$                   
g)  Anti-virus Software Renewal
       (paid through 7/31/2016) 750$                   
h)  Hosting "Website Builder" program, 170$                   
i)   Miscellaneous 500$                   





Page E-6.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
LEGAL FEES-41610 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

3040 ATTORNEY FEES 102,704.67$ 127,500$  125,000$     
a)  Civil 9%
b)  Criminal 85%
c)  Special Projects 6%





Page E-7.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
ENGINEERING FEES-41710 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

3030 ENGINEERING FEES 3,314.51$      10,000$    9,000$         





Page E-8.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
PLANNING & ZONING-41720 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 99.45$          117$         117$            
a)  Name Plates
b)  Letterhead/Envelopes

2220 POSTAGE 52.80$          150$         150$            

3500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 168.51$        400$         400$            
a)  Public Notices (Property Owners)
b)  Official Notices (Newspapers)

4000 PLANNER FEES -$              -$          1,000$         

TOTAL PLANNING & ZONING 320.76$        665$         1,667$         





Page E-9.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS-41940 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits/2016 Steps 13,589.64$   14,000$    13,022$       
a)  1 - 25%   

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$              269$         269$            

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 984.62$        1,050$      977$            
a)  Coordinated 7.5% 13,022$       

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 973.16$        1,092$      1,017$         
a)  FICA 6.2% 13,291$       824$          
b)  Medicare 1.45% 13,291$       193$          

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 3,305.99$     3,300$      3,300$         

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 12.54$          13$           13$              

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 464.00$        500$         500$            
a)  Premium 500$          
b)  Deductible -$           

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 8,295.09$     7,500$      7,500$         
a)  Paper Products
b)  Cleaning Supplies
c)  Biohazard Clean Up Kits
d)  Mat Cleaning Service
 

2200 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 8,461.57$     7,200$      7,200$         
a)  Irrigation System 538$          
b)  Plbg./Electrical 2,322$       
c)  General Bldg. Repair/Maint. 2,090$       
d)  Annual Fire Ext. Maint. 750$          
e)  Test Fire Sprinklers in North Garage 500$          
f)   Gun Range-Service Calls (furnace etc) 1,000$       

2225 LANDSCAPE MATERIALS -$              -$          -$             

2280 UNIFORMS 96.46$          250$         250$            
a)  Uniforms Allowance per contract 200$          
b)  T-Shirts 50$            

3210 LANDLINE TELEPHONE 8,822.34$     9,000$      9,000$         
a)  T1 Service,Phone System,Long Distance 6,120$       
b)  Yearly Maintenance Agreement 1,750$       
c)  Bulletin Board Dedicated Line 630$          
d)  Service Calls 500$          

3810 ELECTRIC SERVICE 21,659.87$   17,000$    22,000$       
a)  Bulletin Board
b)  Security Lighting
c)  City Offices
d)  Public Works Building



Page E-9.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
GOVERNMENT BUILDING-41940 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

3830 GAS UTILITIES 20,413.59$   15,000$    20,000$       
a)  Public Works Building

3841 RUBBISH REMOVAL 4,569.14$     4,150$      4,150$         
a)   Rubbish Removal 3,300$       
b)   Anoka County Solid Waste Mgmt Fee 850$          

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 875.86$        940$         940$            
a)  Pest Control 300$          
b)  Safety Consultant 640$          

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$              -$          -$             

7000 GOVERNMENT BUILDING REPLACEMENT FUND 7,328.00$     8,126$      9,014$         

TOTAL GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS 99,851.87$   89,390$    99,151$       



Page E-10.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/10/15

2014 2015 2016
POLICE PROTECTION-42100 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits/2016 Steps 954,184.03$    961,960$         958,188$          
a)  Officers, Chief & Sergeants 821,648$         
b)  Record Management Technicians 105,150$         
c)  Receptionist  (1,560/hrs yr) 29,950$           
d)  Terminal Agency Coord (TAC) 1,440$             
         Special Pay - $120/month

1013 OVERTIME *2015 Salaries & Benefits 62,534.17$      97,000$           97,000$            
a)  Officers 82,000$           
b)  Record Management Technicians 6,000$             
c)  City SITE 9,000$             
(Holiday Pay, **Revenue Generating: Safe & Sober Grant,
  SITE; Non Generating Revenue: Night to Unite)

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$                 4,000$             4,000$              

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 142,501.76$    150,751$         150,326$          
a)  PNF  15.3% 912,648$    139,635$         
b)  Coordinated 7.5% 142,540$    10,691$           

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 22,352.87$      24,619$           24,444$            
a) FICA 6.2% 146,540$    9,085$             
b) Medicare 1.45% 1,059,188$ 15,358$           

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 149,360.85$    148,000$         148,000$          

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 672.10$           665$                665$                 

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 24,474.72$      25,000$           25,000$            
a)  Premium 23,000$           
b)  Deductible 2,000$             

2000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,403.17$        3,600$             3,600$              
a)  Ticket Writer Paper
b)  Ink Cartridges
c)  Printer Paper

2030 PRINTED FORMS 786.19$           1,000$             1,000$              
a) Mandate Property Receipts
b) Notice of Seizure/Intent to Forfeit
c) Business Cards & Letterhead

2040 RANGE EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 7,509.52$        7,550$             7,550$              
a)  Taser Cartridges 1,250$             
b)  Ammo (Mandated to use duty ammo) 3,550$             
c)  Targets 300$                
d)  Range Filter 500$                
e)  Gun Cleaning Supplies 150$                
f)   Range Cleaning-Contractor 1,300$             
g)  Range Service Calls-routine maintenance 500$                



Page E-10.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/10/15

2014 2015 2016
POLICE PROTECTION-42100 ( CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 533.27$           3,500$             3,500$              
a)  First Aid Supplies 187$                
b)  Tobacco compliance checks 100$                
c)  Vehicle Registrations 60$                  
d)  Vehicle Title Transfers 60$                  
e)  Mouth Pieces 321$                
f)   Defib Electrodes 1,067$             
g)  Biohazard Clean-Up Kits 233$                
h)  DVD-DVR 47$                  
i)   Eyeglasses (Contractual) 600$                
j)   Annual Fire Ext Inspections 425$                
k)  Miscellaneous 400$                

2120 MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS 22,256.92$      23,700$           23,700$            

2220 POSTAGE 1,018.25$        1,900$             1,900$              

3050 MEDICAL EXPENSES 766.44$           2,000$             2,000$              
a) Hiring Process-Employee Physical &
    Psych Evaluation

3210 CELL PHONES 2,487.45$        3,000$             3,400$              

3211 DATA SERVICES 11,341.04$      13,380$           16,992$            
a)  Mobile Data Quarterly Fee  $450x4 1,800$             
b)  Monthly Mobile Access  $266 X 12 3,192$             
c)  CJDN Quarterly Fee  $390x4 1,560$             
d)  Ticket Writer Fee 520$                
e)  Two Factor Authentication Annual Cost 6,500$             
f)   Evidence.com 3,420$             

3300 CLOTHING & PERSONAL EQUIPMENT 9,958.82$        9,270$             9,420$              
a)  $770x11 8,470$             
b)  Office Staff  $300x3 900$                
c)  Service Awards 50$                  

3310 TRAVEL EXPENSE 486.38$           500$                500$                 

3421 800 MHZ RADIO 1,023.87$        2,006$             2,006$              
a)  Annual MESB Fee  1,000$             
b)  Radio Extended Warranty 1,006$             

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICE 5,992.58$        16,200$           16,860$            
a)  Shredding Service 500$                
b)  Radar Calibration 400$                
c)  Central Records Support 15,200$           
d)  Detox transportation (Dakota County) 335$                
e)  Firewall Maintenance Contract 425$                



Page E-10.3
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/10/15

2014 2015 2016
POLICE PROTECTION-42100 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4050 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 2,957.76$        3,740$             4,000$              
a)  Copier & Overages 2,700$             
b)  Imaging, Scanner Service Plan & Support 1,100$             
c)  Taser Extended Warranties 200$                

4060 AUTO EQUIPMENT & REPAIR 23,392.27$      20,000$           20,000$            

4070 OTHER EQUIPMENT REPAIR 3,353.47$        3,500$             3,500$              
a)  Security Camera Repairs (replace, fix)

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 7,003.48$        11,500$           11,500$            
a)  Law Enforcement Training 3,500$             
b)  IACP Conference 2,500$             
c)  Training per Contract $500 x 11 5,500$             

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,080.00$        825$                1,485$              
a)  Anoka County Chiefs 45$                  
b)  MN Chiefs of Police 230$                
c)  IACP 150$                
d)  Post Board Renewals ($90x7) 630$                
e)  MN Crime Prevention 45$                  
f)   Assn. Of Training Officers 15$                  
g)  Sam's Club 35$                  
h)  Tri Co Investigation Assoc. 85$                  
i)   MOCIC 250$                

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 31,568.61$      33,075$           35,472$            
a)  2016 Squad 30,772$           
b)  Tear Down & Rebuild 2016 4,200$             
c)  Squad Graphic's Stripping 500$                

7000 TRANSFER OUT 2,000.00$        2,000$             25,355$            
a)  Radio Replacement Fund 2,000$             
b)  Repayment for Loan Advance (GK) 19,200$           
    (use savings from salaries/benefits)
c)  Emergency Management Fund (New) 3,155$             
d)  Animal Control Fund (New) 1,000$             

TOTAL POLICE PROTECTION 1,492,999.99$ 1,574,241$      1,601,362$       





Page E-11.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised 10/17/15

2014 2015 2016
FIRE PROTECTION-42200 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4000 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONTRACT 181,511.40$ 186,712$       199,057$     

4935 STATE FIRE AID -$              422,930$       422,930$     

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY  - LGA 13,184.16$   20,904$         29,439$       

TOTAL FIRE PROTECTION 194,695.56$ 630,546$       651,426$     





Page E-12.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
CODE ENFORCEMENT-42300 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits 73,052.13$   76,100$    76,100$       

1040 TEMPORARY SALARY *2015 Salaries & Benefits 6,526.00$     10,080$    10,080$       
  Seasonal Internship ($12-$15/hr)

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$              1,462$      1,462$         

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 5,188.39$     5,708$      5,708$         
a) Coordinated 7.5% 76,100$  

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 5,993.41$     6,705$      6,705$         
a)  FICA 6.2% 87,642$  5,434$                
b)  Medicare 1.45% 87,642$  1,271$                

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 10,120.40$   9,850$      9,850$         

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 51.32$          51$           51$              

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 462.77$        1,450$      1,450$         
a)  Premium 450$                   
b)  Deductible 1,000$                

2000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 448.82$        500$         500$            

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 588.66$        1,300$      1,300$         
a)  Printed Forms - Permits 187$                   
b)  Business Cards 187$                   
c)  Identification Attire 278$                   
d)  Code Books & Publications 370$                   
e)  Annual Charge for Color Copies 278$                   

2120 MOTOR FUELS 1,487.42$     1,400$      1,600$         

2200 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,744.17$     750$         1,000$         
a)  Vehicle Repair & Maint.

3210 CELL PHONE 1,239.15$     1,000$      1,000$         

3310 TRAVEL EXPENSES 5.91$            150$         150$            

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 910.00$        900$         1,000$         
a)  Annual Bldg. Offical State Conference 800$                   
b)  Fire Marshall Training 100$                   
c)  M.A.H.C.O. 100$                   



Page E-12.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
CODE ENFORCEMENT-42300 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 634.72$        2,000$      2,000$         
a)  ICC Membership 160$                   
b)  10,000 Lakes Membership 150$                   
c)  Wells Fargo Credit Card 10$                     
d)  Fire Marshalls Assn 80$                     
e)  M.A.H.C.O. 100$                   
f)   Permit Works Annual Subscription 1,500$                

TOTAL CODE ENFORCEMENT 108,453.27$ 119,406$  119,956$     



Page E-13.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT-42500 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2200 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE -$              750$         -$             

3810 ELECTRIC 81.79$          100$         -$             

4050 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 1,004.16$     1,055$      -$             
 (Based on 2 Sirens)

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 448.78$        500$         -$             
a)  Masks, Gloves
b)  Storage Bins
c)  Barrier Tape

TOTAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 1,534.73$     2,405$      -$             

**Moved to Police Department 101.42100.7000





Page E-14.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
ANIMAL CONTROL-42700 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -$              1,000$      -$             

**Moved to Police Department 101.42100.7000





Page E-15.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
STREETS-43000 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits/2016 Steps 122,556.18$ 126,000$  125,022$     
a)  1 - 100% 56,000$              
b)  3 - 25% 41,022$              
c)  33% of Director 28,000$              

1013 OVERTIME *2015 Salaries & Benefits 6,840.58$     7,061$      7,061$         
a)  175 hrs @ $40.35

1020 ON-CALL SALARIES * 2015 Salaries & Benefits 786.29$        2,018$      2,018$         
a)  50 hrs @ $40.35

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$              810.00$    810$            

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 9,322.43$     10,131$    10,058$       
 a) Coordinated 7.5% 134,101$ 

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 9,685.84$     10,395$    10,321$       
a) FICA 6.2% 134,911$ 8,364$                
b) Medicare 1.45% 134,911$ 1,956$                

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 22,922.33$   20,950$    23,105$       

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 106.39$        107$         107$            

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 7,323.69$     8,000$      9,000$         
a)  Premium 8,000$                
b)  Deductible 1,000$                

2120 MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS 18,971.88$   18,000$    18,000$       

2150 SHOP MATERIALS 1,153.76$     2,000$      2,000$         

2200 REPAIR, MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 12,180.54$   7,500$      7,500$         

2210 EQUIPMENT PARTS 7,235.78$     5,500$      6,000$         

2221 TIRES 1,047.55$     750$         760$            

2224 STREET MAINTENANCE MATERIALS 1,393.00$     1,393$      1,393$         
a)  Sand/Salt ($30,000 moved to MSA) -$                    
b)  Storm Sewer Repairs (Storm Water Fund) -$                    
c)  Asphalt 1,393$                

2226 SIGNS & STRIPING 2,536.22$     6,000$      6,000$         
a)  Crosswalks
b)  Curbs



Page E-15.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
STREETS-43000 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2280 UNIFORMS 637.72$        750$         790$            
a)  Uniforms Allowance per contract 700$                   
b)  T-Shirts 90$                     

3210 CELL PHONE 194.36$        370$         370$            

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 790.22$        840$         840$            
a)  Safety Consultant 640$                   
b)  Random Drug Testing & Annual Fee 200$                   
c)  Street Sweeping 
         ($9,000 - Storm Water Fund) -$                    

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 78.89$          400$         400$            
a)  Safety Training 100$                   
b)  A.P.W.A. St. Cloud 300$                   

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 72.50$          100$         100$            
a)  American Public Works Assn. 80$                     
b)  Regional Mutual Aid Dues 10$                     
c)  Wells Fargo Credit Card 10$                     

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$              -$          -$             

TOTAL STREETS DEPARTMENT 225,836.15$ 229,075$  231,654$     



Page E-16.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/6/15

2014 2015 2016
RECREATION-45100 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits/2016 Steps 181,790.84$ 183,200$  202,245$     

1030 PART TIME *2015 Salaries & Benefits 4,284.51$     10,875$    -$             
 Support Specialist

1040 TEMPORARY SALARIES (Salary Range $9.00-$11.00) 17,515.28$   13,000$    13,000$       
a)  3 Playground Leaders $10 x 320 hrs x 3 = $9,600
b)  Rink Attendants $10 x 340 hrs = $3,400 

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$              2,600$      2,600$         

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 12,892.33$   13,740$    15,168$       
a)  Coordinated 7.5% 202,245$ 

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 15,126.11$   16,040$    16,665$       
a)  FICA 6.2% 217,845$ 13,506$              
b)  Medicare 1.45% 217,845$ 3,159$                

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 28,739.85$   28,000$    33,231$       

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 155.85$        155$         176$            

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 1,005.55$     2,000$      1,700$         
a)  Premium 700$                   
b)  Deductible 1,000$                

2000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,674.01$     1,625$      1,625$         
a)  Office Supplies 789$                   
b)  Woven Envelopes/Stationary Shells 372$                   
c)  Ink Cartridges, Toner 464$                   

2220 POSTAGE 3,388.93$     2,350$      6,800$         
a)  Recreation Brochure Mailing 4,450$                
b)  Miscellaneous Mailings 2,350$                

2290 EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 2,705.60$     2,200$      2,200$         
a)  Playground Supplies (Bats,Balls,Games) 464$                   
b)  Youth Program Supplies 836$                   
c)  Seniors Program 900$                   

3310 TRAVEL EXPENSE 842.61$        1,000$      1,000$         

3410 EMPLOYMENT ADVERTISING -$              -$          -$             

3500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 8,632.86$     8,857$      9,857$         
a)  Winter Program Brochure 4,000$                
b)  Fall Program Brochure 4,000$                
c)  Paper, ink & stencils for all flyers 1,857$                



Page E-16.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised-8/6/15

2014 2015 2016
RECREATION-45100 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 1,470.00$     1,400$      1,400$         
a)  M.R.P.A. Annual Conference 1,300$                
b)  Municipals Banquet -$                    
c)  M.R.P.A., LMC Workshops 100$                   

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 373.22$        435$         435$            
a)  M.R.P.A. 265$                   
b)  Sam's Club 135$                   
c)  Wells Fargo Credit Card 20$                     
d)  M.A.S.S. 15$                     

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$              -$          -$             

TOTAL RECREATION DEPARTMENT 280,597.55$ 287,477$  308,103$     



Page E-17.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
PARKS-45200 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1010 SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits/2016 Steps 128,355.46$ 132,100$  130,160$     
a)  1 - 100% (Lead Worker) 61,160$              
b)  3 - 25% 41,000$              
c)  33% of Director 28,000$              

1013 OVERTIME *2015 Salaries & Benefits 7,831.20$     7,061$      7,061$         
a)  175 hrs @ $40.35

1020 ON-CALL SALARIES *2015 Salaries & Benefits 103.64$        2,018$      2,018$         
a)  50 hrs @ $40.35

1040 TEMPORARY SALARIES (Salary range $10-$12) -$              -$          -$             
(Moved to Public Utilities)
a)  $11.00 x 520 -$                    
b)  $11.00 x 520 -$                    
c)  $11.00 x 280 -$                    

1050 VACATION BUY BACK *2015 Salaries & Benefits -$              2,000$      2,000$         

1210 PERA EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 9,827.76$     10,588$    10,443$       
a) Coordinated 7.5% 139,239$ 

1220 FICA & MEDICARE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 10,188.18$   10,953$    10,805$       
a) FICA 6.2% 141,239$ 8,757$                
b) Medicare 1.45% 141,239$ 2,048$                

1300 HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE 21,041.08$   20,500$    23,103$       

1313 PRUDENTIAL LIFE INSURANCE 107.01$        107$         107$            

1510 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 10,202.07$   10,000$    10,500$       
a)  Premium 9,500$                
b)  Deductible 1,000$                

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES 210.21$        930$         1,000$         
a)  Park Building Supplies
    1)  Rags
    2)  Cleaning Supplies
    3)  Paper Products
    4)  Shovels/Rakes

2120 MOTOR FUELS & LUBRICANTS 17,980.14$   17,000$    17,000$       

2200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 8,133.43$     7,000$      7,000$         
a)  Paint 800$                   
b)  Hardware 800$                   
c)  Lumber 800$                   
d)  Electrical 700$                   
e)  Irrigation System 1,800$                
f)   Conde Park Fountain 800$                   
g)  Auto Repairs 1,000$                
h)  Miscellaneous 300$                   



Page E-17.2
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
PARKS-45200 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2210 EQUIPMENT PARTS 2,991.55$     3,000$      3,000$         

2221 TIRES 459.90$        600$         600$            

2225 LANDSCAPE MATERIALS 8,055.68$     8,600$      8,600$         
a)  Fertilizer & Seed 2,968$                
b)  Agriculture Lime 1,243$                
c)  Line White Field Marking Paint 464$                   
d)  Safe Line for Lining Fields 278$                   
e)  Retaining Block 556$                   
f)   Fibre for Playgrounds 1,391$                
g)  Broadleaf Control 1,700$                

2280 UNIFORMS 637.72$        700$         800$            
a)  Uniform Allowance per contract 700$                   
b)  T-Shirts 100$                   

2290 RECREATION EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 996.70$        930$         1,530$         
a)  Replacement parts for Bleachers/
         Benches/Tables 232$                   
b)  Volleyball, Hockey & Tennis Nets 232$                   
c)  Backstop Fencing 466$                   
d)  Playground Parts 600$                   

3210 LEAD WORKER'S CELL PHONE 198.98$        232$         232$            

3810 ELECTRIC SERVICE 3,758.88$     3,725$      3,800$         
a)  Warming House (Able Park) Skating Lights
b)  Tennis & Ballfield Lights at Terrace Park
c)  Conde Park Water Fountain
d)  8463 Terrace Road

3830 GAS SERVICE 4,967.93$     4,000$      4,000$         
a)  Able Park Building
b)  Terrace Park Building
c)  Sanburnol Building (heat left on low to prevent damage)
d)  8463 Terrace Road

3841 RUBBISH REMOVAL 263.87$        300$         300$            
a)  Removal 200$                   
b)  Solid Waste Mgmt Charge-Anoka Co 100$                   

4190 SATELLITE RENTAL 1,114.90$     1,300$      1,300$         
a)  2 units @ $60 = $120 x 4/mo. 480$                   
b)  2 units @ $60 = $120 x 6/mo. 720$                   
c)  2 units @ $50 = $100 100$                   



Page E-17.3

2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:
2014 2015 2016

PARKS-45200 (CON'T) ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 557.68$        800$         800$            
a)  Public Works Annual Conference 100$                   
b)  Ballfield Maintenance 100$                   
c)  Playground School 500$                   
d)  Minnesota Green Conference 100$                   

4330 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS -$              -$          -$             

4500 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 786.00$        760$         760$            
a)  Safety Consultant 640$                   
b)  Random Drug Testing 120$                   

4901 LAKESIDE PARK EXPENSE 10,608.00$   11,500$    11,500$       

5000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$              -$          -$             

-$              

TOTAL PARKS DEPARTMENT 249,377.97$ 256,704$  258,419$     



Page E-17.4
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2015 2016
101.45200.4901  LAKESIDE PARK BUDGET BUDGET

Salaries: 3,360$     3,360$         
a)  Maintenance Person:

4 hrs/day x 80 days x $10.50/hr 3,360$    

FICA/Medicare (.0765 x $3,360) 257$        257$            

Worker's Compensation (.0335 x $3,360) 166$        166$            

Operating Supplies: 3,000$     3,000$         
a)  Soap, toilet paper, garbage bags 250$       
b)  Ag lime for ballfield 200$       
c)  Aeration notice 60$         
d)  Volleyball net 190$       
e)  Broadleaf/Veg Control 575$       
f)   Fertilizer (50 bags) & seed 850$       
g)  Playground surface 875$       

Electricity (Vandal lights, irrigation system & buildings) 1,600$     1,600$         

Water/Sewer Service 1,600$     1,600$         

Refuse Collection 75$          75$              

Portable Restrooms 500$        500$            

Maintenance Equipment Rental/Usage 4,600$     4,600$         

Insurance 4,800$     4,800$         

Equipment Repairs 3,592$     3,592$         
a)  Sprinkler system-expansion 700$       
b)  Drinking fountain 300$       
c)  Fencing 100$       
d)  Playground equipment 247$       
e)  Signs repairs 100$       
f)   Electricial 300$       
g)  Building and sidewalks 1,845$    

TOTAL LAKESIDE PARK BUDGET 23,550$   23,550$       
Less Park Rental Income & Investment Income (550)$       (550)$           

23,000$   23,000$       

Spring Lake Park Share 11,500$  11,500$      



Page E-18.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES:

2014 2015 2016
FORESTRY-45300 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2100 OPERATING SUPPLIES -$              46$           46$              

4000 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES -$              1,000$      1,000$         
a) Dead Blvd Trees (Oak Wilt, Dutch Elm)

4300 CONFERENCES & SCHOOLS 540.00$        540$         545$            

TOTAL FORESTRY DEPARTMENT 540.00$        1,586$      1,591$         





Page E-19.1
2016 BUDGET BREAKDOWN OF EXPENDITURES: Revised 10/17/15

2014 2015 2016
MISCELLANEOUS-49000 ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1300 RETIREES HOSPITALIZATION BENEFITS -$                  -$             -$             

1313 RETIRED LIFE BENEFITS -$                  50$              50$              

3600 INSURANCE 42,038.18$       45,000$       45,000$       
a)  General Liability
b)  Accident
c)  Boards & Commissions
d)  Auto

4390 MISCELLANEOUS 494.20$            1,000$         1,000$         

4420 PLUMBING SURCHARGE 325.00$            200$            200$            

4430 HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING SURCHARGES 500.00$            400$            400$            

4440 BUILDING SURCHARGES 2,122.75$         2,000$         2,000$         

7000 PERMANENT TRANSFERS 191,600.00$     170,000$     234,784$     
a)  Election Fund transfer 10,000$          
b)  Severence Liability 15,000$          

(2009-$0)
(2010-$0)
(2011-$10,000)
(2012-$10,000)
(2013-$10,000)
(2014-$10,000)
(2015-$15,000)

c)  Transfer from LGA (Fire Dept Debt) 50,000$          
d)  Transfer from LGA (PW Debt Service Fund) 40,000$           (remainder 50%-PU)
e)  Transfer from LGA (Storm WaterFund) 25,000$          
f)   Transfer from LGA (Police Radios) 15,000$          
g)  Transfer from LGA (Comp Plan Update) 5,000$            
h)  City Hall Facility Study 10,000$          
i)   Contingency 64,784$          

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 237,080.13$     218,650$     283,434$     

TOTAL  2016 EXPENDITURES 3,534,287.42$  4,129,803$  4,242,858$  





 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: FACILITY STUDY/SPACE NEEDS ANALYSIS 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2015 

 

The City Council, at its October 5, 2015 meeting, authorized staff to issue a request for proposals 

(RFP) for a facility assessment/space needs analysis for the City Hall/Police Department/former 

Maintenance Facility.  The RFP was sent to selected architectural firms as well as posted on the 

League of Minnesota Cities website, with a due date of October 30, 2015 at 4pm. 

 

City staff was pleasantly surprised with the response the City received to its RFP.  Thirteen firms 

submitted proposals.  The price for services ranged from $9,725.00 to $132,900.  The City’s 

management team (City Administrator, Police Chief, Building Official, Recreation Director and 

Public Works Director) reviewed each proposal, comparing the proposal to the specifications set 

forth in the RFP.  After much discussion, the Management Team invited four architectural firms to 

give presentations on their proposal – Buetow 2 Architects, Stantec, Five Bugles Design Group and 

Leo A. Daly.  Those interviews occurred on December 9, 2015. 

 

City staff was impressed with the quality of the presentations from the four firms interviewed.  Each 

firm had qualified staff that would be able to provide a quality product.  However, one firm really 

stood out to the Management Team based on its understanding of the proposal, its project 

management approach and its enthusiasm for the project: Leo A. Daly.  Staff has included a copy 

of the proposal submitted by Leo A. Daly for your review. 

 

Leo A. Daly’s team, led by Cindy McCleary, AIA, has significant experience completing these 

facility studies.  Staff was very comfortable with the process they proposed to undertake, along 

with a hands-on approach to ensure that we end up with a quality project.  An example of this was 

the stakeholder survey.  While all the firms had a stakeholder survey tool for everyone to complete, 

Leo A. Daly was the only firm that stated they would be on site to review how the site operates.  

This on-site observation will allow them to identify facility inefficiencies that staff may not be able 

to identify simply through a questionnaire. 

 

The fee for the facility assessment/space needs analysis is $16,200 plus up to $450 in reimbursable 

expenses.  Funding for the study would come from the 2016 General Fund budget ($10,000) and 

the Recreation Programs Fund ($6,650).  This cost-sharing is appropriate considering that the 

possible addition of a community center on-site is part of the facility study. 

 

Staff requests the City Council authorize entering into a contract with Leo A. Daly to conduct the 

facility assessment/space needs study.  Staff anticipates that the study will be completed by July 

2016. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this recommendation, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 

763-784-6491. 





ContaCt: Cindy MCCleary, regional Market SeCtor lead

730 SeCond ave South, Suite 1100 • MinneapoliS, Mn 55402 • phone 612.338.8741 

ProPosal fo r a facilit y assessm ent/sPace needs analysis fo r the  
cit y hall/Police dePar tm ent/fo r m er maintenance facilit y 

Cit y of Spring Lake park, MinneSota

oC tober 30, 2014



730 SECOND AVE SOUTH
SUITE 1100
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55402
TEL 612-338-8741
FAX 612.338.4840
www.leoadaly.com

October 30, 2015

Spring Lake Park City Hall
1301 81st Avenue NE
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432

Re: City of Spring Lake Park Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

Dear Mr. Buchholtz and Selection Committee:

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Request for Proposal for the Facility Assessment/
Space Needs Analysis for the City of Spring Lake Park City Hall/Police Department/Maintenance 
Facility. LEO A DALY is excited about this opportunity and trust that you will find our qualifications 
particularly well-aligned with the needs of the City of Spring Lake Park. 

Some of the highlights of our team for your consideration include:

 • LEO A DALY recently completed a similar space needs analysis for the City of Hastings and we 
are currently wrapping up a study for the City of Oakdale. 

 • The LEO A DALY team is well organized for rapid project service with our in-house architecture, 
structural, mechanical, electrical, and civil engineering; 

 • Our team has significant expertise in sustainability and energy efficient design as exemplified 
by the LEO A DALY Sustainability Assessment process now being used on US Federal/Military 
campuses, which assesses existing facilities to improve energy efficiency, and develops the 
feasibility to adaptively renovate;

 • LEO A DALY’s experience is in space use planning and space use innovation. We are specifically 
suited for clients experiencing rapid changes in employee counts, organizational structure or 
embracing new operating styles. We provide this to government, municipal and corporate clients, 
leveraging efficiencies from both the public and private sectors. 

 • Our process, including the building audit, program confirmation, concepts, design execution 
have been honed through extensive public project experience and are part of LEO A DALY’s 
reputation for well-managed, high quality projects. 

On behalf of the entire LEO A DALY office, we thank you for this opportunity. Should you have any 
questions related to our response, or need additional information please contact me.

Respectfully,

LEO A DALY

Cindy McCleary, AIA LEED AP NCARB   
Market Sector Lead – Regional Government
Project Manager     
612-341-9588 CAMcCleary@leoadaly.com  



1City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
The City is looking for a thoughtful and comprehensive assessment of the space 
needs of the municipality and various facilities for the purposes of developing 
consensus for ideal office / facility solutions to meet the needs of the city. The 
process is to be appropriately interactive with city staff to integrate input and 
define needs, while respecting the available schedules of participants. LEO A 
DALY has developed a thorough assessment with concepts and costs which 
enables our clients to make sounds decisions with their tax payer dollars. 

ARCHITECTURAL SPACE PROGRAM

A successful planning effort must begin with a detailed understanding of the 
current and future needs. A well-organized architectural space programming 
effort includes assessment of current services and delivery methods, high level 
involvement of key staff leaders, development of planning and space standards, 
adjacency diagramming, and cost assessments.

The LEO A DALY team proposes to provide the following basic services for 
architectural space programming:

Key Leadership and Staff Interviews and Questionnaires
Essential to an interactive process, the programming effort begins with the 
development of a series of questionnaires aimed at key leaders and staff within 
each department and division effected. These questionnaires will be analyzed 
by the LEO A DALY Team and reviewed through a series of one-on-one 
interviews with departmental leadership and staff. Space requirements, staff 
and space adjacencies, interdepartmental relationships, specialized functions, 
administrative, program support, and operational service demands and other 
issues will be identified through this series of interactive meetings.

Planning and Space Standards
Public space requirements, equipment demands, process/work/public flow, 
collaborative work interactions, training requirements, shared resources, code 
required space considerations and work area standardization must all be met 
in the physical environment to assure effective and efficient facilities. In the 
planning process, it is important to identify specific space requirements, as 
well as general standardized elements for all required spaces. 

Program Documentation
The information gathered through the interactive “interview” process will 
result in a program document which clearly identifies individual architectural 
spaces needed. The total building area required will be identifiable based on 
this space program, backed by the detailed space needs exemplified in the 
space standard diagrams. 

FIRM CONTACT 
INFORMATION

Name: 
LEO A DALY COMPANY

Minneapolis Office Address
(All proposed LEO A DALY team 
members reside at this address)
730 Second Ave. South, Suite 1100
Minneapolis, MN 55402
P 612.338.8741 • F 612.338.4840

Contact: Cindy McCleary, Principal
D 612.341.9588 • C 612.242.4424
CAMccleary@leoadaly.com

Minneapolis Office Staff: 60
Total LEO A DALY Firm: 750

GENERAL APPROACH TO THE PROJECT



2City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

CONCEPT PLANNING

Using the finalized planning modules created during the Architectural Space 
Programming effort, the LEO A DALY team will quickly develop test ‘fit plan’ 
diagrams to rapidly explore a range of planning approaches for current and 
future needs for all sites. Fit plans will assess efficiencies, adjacencies, work 
group organization, future planning flexibility. The performance of each plan 
option will be assessed for efficiency, flexibility, expandability, and potential 
cost parameters. 

COST ASSESSMENT

All projects must balance needs with cost efficiency in their ultimate solution. 
The cost-to-benefit analysis for the value of options is crucial in a government 
project. Feasible solution options will be evaluated based on costs associated 
with each. Capital (construction) costs, project costs (land acquisition, fees, 
etc.) and any unique operation cost considerations will be evaluated to identify 
comparative values for each of the solution options.

ERGONOMICS/WORKFLOW

• Orientation/make-up of 
the work environment 
(department)

• Supply/waste streams
• Ergonomics in the work 

environment
• Location/distances

ENVIRONMENT

• Lighting/sound/thermal 
comfort

• Intuitive wayfinding
• Visibility
• Access/location of  

appropriate work tools

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
IMPROVEMENTS

• Devices/technology and 
interface

• Intuitive operations
• Access/location to work 

tools
• Operation of amenities

SPACE EFFECTIVENESS AND EFFICIENCY 

GENERAL APPROACH TO THE PROJECT



3City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

UNDERSTANDING KEY ISSUES – POLICE FACILITIES
Policing has evolved significantly over the last 20 years impacting the operation 
of police facilities. These impacts are physical as new spaces are required and 
older spaces have become obsolete. Infrastructural impacts include technology 
upgrades, changes in public interactions and interviewing, integration of less-
walled spaces. Other impacts include: 

 • The integration of in-squad reporting, technology and digital 
communications (which allow officers to remain out in the field for longer 
periods) places demands on the protection of squads. As well, increasing 
needs for the visible protection of officer personal vehicles and squads 
has led to needs for technology-supported, secure parking or garages.

 • Chain of custody, evidence retention timeframes and types of evidence 
collected have grown exponentially. This impacts the department space 
for bagging, evidence lockers, processing and storage. These spaces have 
grown in need over the last 20 years, not just for capacity, but also for 
defending the chain or custody. Greater needs for refrigerated capacity, 
humidity controlled spaces and disposal also challenge older facilities.

 • New environmental and occupational safety standards for lead 
containment places greater HVAC demands on gun cleaning, armory 
and ammunition storage spaces.

 • Reception, after-hours access, secured entry, the location and quantity of 
interview rooms spaces (accessible from public and secure areas), have 
all modified the entry sequence to optimize efficiencies and security. 

 • The LEO A DALY assessment team will work with key leadership and 
staff to identify the operational and facility needs specific to your building 
and police operations both now and into the future. 

UNDERSTANDING KEY ISSUES – CITY HALLS
A City Hall is a significant piece of architecture, and a strong contributor in 
the community culture. As well, current best practices have evolved enabling 
City’s to consider new ways of operating including:

 • The delivery of information to residents has changed. Consolidating service 
points, consolidation of “reception” functions, streaming city operations 
online resulting in different lobby space demands for technology and 
server rooms, and increased interest in the use of touchscreen and self-
service points have impacted lobby spaces.

 • Community need for public spaces, training spaces and meeting spaces 
have evolved, and the sophistication of the spaces must keep up with 
today’s expectations (lighting controls, acoustics for spoken word 
or speakers, air exchange control, security, access, separation of use 
to “close down” some after-hours spaces, etc. These effect how we 
creatively re-organize spaces within the existing facility to enable greater 
utilization, and broader use. 

 • Community and staff expectations for security have evolved affecting 
physical space. Such examples are reducing the number of entry points, 
controlling the access of individuals to public only spaces or during 
evening events, and the ability to notify others in case of an event. All 
result in both physical and infrastructural modifications.

 • The LEO A DALY assessment will work with key leadership and staff to 
identify the operational and facility needs specific to your goals 

GENERAL APPROACH TO THE PROJECT



4City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

PROJECT WORKPLAN 
LEO A DALY has developed an approach to serving the City of Spring Lake 
Park’s request. We have developed a multi-task effort that addresses the scope 
identified within the RFP. We have organized our team based upon achieving 
the City’s needs We believe this approach provides a broad perspective to 
assess the current operations, affirm space needs, develop concept alternatives, 
and present creative options to provide the City with a road map for execution. 

Our approach is as follows:
PART A – Understanding of the Existing Physical Conditions (Inventory)

 • Collect pertinent site and building information (drawings, maintenance 
logs, etc.)

 • Collect previous studies and reports

 • Collect staff organizational charts and operational data

 • Collect / summarize % of utilization of various spaces

 • Conduct kick-off meeting to identify goals, schedule, and participants

 • Conduct on-site code audit

 • Perform building audit of physical maintenance needs (affirm City’s list)

PART B – Facility Needs Confirmation (Space Needs)

 • Conduct key leadership and staff interviews

 • Conduct municipal growth projections

 • Develop preliminary space and staffing needs summary

 • Review and refine program with key leadership

 • Identify quantitatively future community space and staffing needs. 

PART C – Concepts, Costs, and Funding (Synthesis/Schematics)

 • Develop Vision ideas for creatively re-purposing space

 • Develop a range of preliminary building layout concepts

 • Host design Charrette workshop with key leadership/staff to vet concepts

 • Develop preliminary costs and implementation schedules

 • Review concepts and costs with leadership/staff

 • Identify potential funding sources and refine costs

 • Present to key leadership and council. 

 • Package all information into a clear, report for implementation

DELIVERABLES 

The final product will include a detailed inventory of the spaces needed, 
concept drawings for layout, cost projections and a report that describes the 
project, phasing and implementation strategies. 

WORK PLAN AND TIMELINE

Project:     023‐10172‐000
Date:         04/30/2012
Drawing:   ASSESSMENT

STATE OF ALASKA COURTS 
PALMER COURTHOUSE, PALMER AK

1

10

RECOMMENDED RESTRICTED AREA BOUNDARY

RECOMMENDED ACCESS BY ADMITTANCE ONLY

PALMER COURTHOUSE
FIRST FLOOR

11 11 11 11 11 11

11

11

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

3

4

3

5

6

7
8

8

9 9

10 10

10

10

10
1

4

4

4

2

2

12 12
12

12

12

13 13 13

13

13 13
13

13

13

13

CASE STUDY - SITKA COURTHOUSE

CLIENT NAME STATE OF ALASKA ISSUE DATE 30-Apr-12
DEPARTMENT NAME / SCOPE COURTS SYSTEM REVISION #1 :

LOCATION SITKA ALASKA REVISION #2 :

LEO A DLAY PROJECT NUMBER 023-10172-000 REVISION #3 :

1

2

3
`

4 `

`

5

6

7

8

9

10

` 11

12

13

14 `

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

PROVIDE LIGHTED EXIT SIGN INDICATING DIRECTION OF TRAVEL.

OBSTRUCTIONS IN CORRIDOR. PROVIDE CLEAR PATH OF TRAVEL FOR FULL WIDTH OF HALL TO EXITS

DOOR HAS CARD READER. APPEARS NON-FUNCTIONING. DOOR SHOULD REMAIN CLOSED AND READER MADE OPERATION

THIS DOOR HAS BEEN MODIFIED WITH ACOUSTIC GASKETS. CYLINDER MISSING PROVIDING ACOUSTIC BREECH. RECOMMEND THIS DOOR RECEIVE 
CARD ACCESS (IF SYSTEM IS ADDED) WITH READER ON COURTROOM SIDE (FAIL SAFE DURING EMERGENCY EVENT), AND PEEP SCOPE FROM 
CORRIDOR SIDE. 

IF LIBRARY REMAINS ACCESSIBLE TO GENERAL PUBLIC, DOORS SHALL BE REMOVED AND INFILLED WITH WALL, OR SHALL RECEIVE KEYED LOCKS, 
WITH FREE PASSAGE FROM OFFICE SIDE AND RESTRICTED PASSAGE FROM LIBRARY SIDE. 

IF CAMERAS ARE INSTALLED, RECOMMEND THEY BE LOCATED TO CAPTURE VIEW OF FACE OF PERSONS ENTERING CORRIDOR FROM ANY DOOR 
ALONG THE RESTRICTED ROUTE. 

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN THE BUILDING, RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON BENCH, INCLUDING WITNESS BENCH. RECOMMEND 
INSTALL OF DURESS NOTIFICATION LIGHT ON JUDGES AND CLERKS BENCH TO ALARM THAT DURESS HAS BEEN ENGAGED ELSEWHERE IN THE 

DOOR EXITS DIRECTLY INTO JUDGES CHAMBERS WHICH IS NOT RECOMMENDED. RECOMMEND TREATING DOOR WITH BALISTIC TREATMENT AND 
ADDING PEEP VIEW SCOPE TO DOOR FOR VIEWING FROM CHAMBERS. PER ILLUMINATED EXIT SIGNS, THIS DOOR IS NOT A REQUIRED FIRE EXIT. IF
PROX CARD ACCESS IS PROVIDED, RECOMMEND ADDING READER TO THIS DOOR WITH ACCESS DURING OPERATIONAL HOURS ONLY. BENCH 
DOES NOT MEET ADA ACCESSIBILITY, CONFIRM THAT ACCESSIBILITY CAN BE ACHIEVED BY USE OF OTHER COURTROOM.

, , ,
DOOR REMAIN CLOSED. RECOMMEND DOOR RECEIVE PEEP HOLE. DOOR HARDWARE INADEQUATE TO ACHIEVED REQUIRED EXIT / ADA 
COMPLIANCE

THIS DOOR IS NOT A REQUIRED FIRE EXIT, PER NUMBER OF OCCUPANTS. RECOMMEND THIS DOOR REMAIN CLOSED. IF CARD ACCESS IS ADDED, 
RECOMMEND THIS DOOR RECEIVE READER ON COURTROOM SIDE. RECOMMEND PEEP SCOPE FROM CORRIDOR INTO COURTROOM

DOOR ENABLES BREACH OF CIRCULATION INTO STAFF RESTRICTED AREA. RECOMMEND THE DOOR RECEIVE CARD ACCE

STAFF DOOR HAD ACCESS CONTROL. NOT OPERATIONAL. DOOR IS EXIT AND SHOULD BE SIGNED, CONFIRM PROPER EXIT HARDWARE. DOOR 
SHOULD RECEIVE LIGHTED EXIT SIGN FROM RESTRICTED SIDE OVER DOOR,.

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON DESK. RECOMMEND PANELS TO MITIGATE ABILITY FORR 
VISITOR TO PHYSICALL COME OVER DESK. DURESS ALARMS INSTALLED IN THIS SUITE. RECOMMEND ONE AT EACH STAFF LOCATION, AT VAULT, (IN 
ADDITION TO ONE IN CLERKS OFFICE)

RECOMMEND CONTINUATION OF WALL TO RESTRICT PUBLIC FROM APPROACHING STAFF FROM AROUND THE DESK. RECOMMEND DOOR, IDEALLY 
FULL HEIGHT WITH CARD ACCESS INTO CLERKS OFFICE SUITE AREA.

OFFICE SUITE NOT REVIEWED, DURESS ALARM SHOULD BE LOCATED WIITHIN, IF NOT ALREADY PROVIDED. ALARM INDICATOR LIGHT SHOULD BE 
PROVIDED TO NOTIFY SUITE THAT DURESS HAS BEEN ALARMED ELSEWHERE.

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND GLASS AND DOOR BE BALISTICALLY TREATED. DOORS SHOULD REMAIN CLOSED 
DURING THE DAY. REMOTE LOCKING RECOMMENDED, FROM STAFF DESK

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND GLASS AND DOOR BE BALISTICALLY TREATED. DOOR BOLT WAS JAMBED. 
RECOMMEND MODIFIED HARDWARE TO ALLOW UNRESTRICTED EXIT FROM COURTROOM, AND KEYED LOCK FROM LOBBY. KEYED LOCK SHALL 
NOT RESTRICT EXIT ABILITIES.

LIGHTED EXIT SIGN OVER DOOR APPEAR NON-OPERABLE. CONFIRM THAT DOOR HAS PROPER EXIT HARDWARE. SHOULD ALLOW FOR FREE 
PASSAGE INTO STAIRWELL AND RESTRICTED PASSAGE FROM STAIRWELL TO CORRIDOR. 

RECOMMEND CARD ACCESS AT ENTRY DOOR FOR STAFF USE AND CAMERA TO CAPTURE FACE OF PERSON ENTERING AND LEAVING THE 
FACILITY. GIVEN THE SHARED USE OF THE FACILITY WITH LOCAL ENTITY, RECOMMEND SHARED CAMERA/DVR SYSTEM AND SHARED CARD 

RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON WINDOW SURFACES. 

RECOMMEND SECURITY CAMERAS AT ENTRY, STAIR AND LOBBY

RECOMMEND RESTROOM DOORS HAVE KEY LOCK FROM LOBBY SIDE

DOOR WAS PROPPED OPEN DURING PRE-ARRAINGNMENT / COURT. RECOMMEND DOOR REMAIN CLOSED DURING USE 

PROVIDE CAMERA OVER COURTROOM DOOR TO VIEW BENCH / WITNESS AND EXIT DOORS AT JUDGES AREA.

PROVIDE CAMERA OVER JUDGES BENCH WITH VIEW OF ENTIRE WELL AND COURTROOM DOORS.

J
SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DOORS - CONTROL

SUITE OFFICE DOOR  - KEYED R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
SUITE OFFICE DOOR - INTERCOM R S S S S S S R S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
SUITE OFFICE DOOR - REMOTE DOOR LOCK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
JUDGES CHAMBER DOOR - KEY LOCK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S R R S S S S S S S S S S S R R R

DURESS ALARM R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
DURESS INDICATOR LIGHT S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

K
SEPERATED FROM RESTRICTED AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DOORS - CONTROL

DELIBERATION SUITE DOOR  - KEYED / CARD ACCESS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
DELIVERATION SUITE DOOR - INTERCOM S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DELIBERATION DOOR - REMOTE DOOR LOCK NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

DURESS ALARM R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
DURESS STROBE NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

L
SEPERATED FROM RESTRICTED AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
DOORS - CONTROL

PUBLIC DOOR  - KEYED / CARD ACCESS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
RESTRICTED STAFF DOOR - KEYED / CARD ACCESS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

DURESS ALARM R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
DURESS STROBE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

M
SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DOORS - CONTROL

SUITE OFFICE DOOR  - KEYED R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
SUITE OFFICE DOOR - INTERCOM S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
SUITE OFFICE DOOR - REMOTE DOOR LOCK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
STAFF RESTRICTED AREA DOOR - CARD ACCESS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC AREAS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DURESS ALARMS

DURESS ALARM - AT CLERK OFFICE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S
DURESS ALARM - AT PUBLIC COUNTER, EACH STATION R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S
DURESS STROBE - OFFICE SIDE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S

PROTECTIVE BARRIERS 
AT PUBLIC COUNTER YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
AT DOOR TO STAFF RESTRICTED AREA YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S

N
DOORS - CONTROL

SALLY PORT FROM RESTRICTED  - REMOTE DOOR LOCK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
SALLY PORT FROM PUBLIC - REMOTE DOOR LOCK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
SALLY PORT FROM GARAGE - REMOTE DOOR LOCK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
STAFF RESTRICTED AREA DOOR - CARD ACCESS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

SEPERATED FROM RESTRICTED AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC AREAS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
DEDICATED CIRCULATION PATH TO/FROM SALLY PORT YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DEDICATED CIRCULATION PATH TO/FROM COURT ROOM YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DETENTION CONTROL ROOM R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
HOLDING ROOM SPACES YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

DESIGN REQUIRED MULTI COURT FELONY TWO-THREE COURTROOM FELONY SINGLE FELONY TRIAL COURTROOM SINGLE MAGISTRATE RURAL COURT RURAL

IN CUSTODY SPACES

JUDGES CHAMBERS / SUITES

JURY DELIBERATION

COURT LAW LIBRARY

CLERKS SPACES

D
SECURITY DESK YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
HANDHELD MAGNOTOMETER YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
WALKTHRU MAG - SINGLE OR MULTI ZONE YES YES R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
FLUOROSCOPES - XRAY MACHINES YES YES R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
PROTECTIVE BARRIERS - SECURITY WALLS YES YES R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR
DOSIMETERS / EXPLOSIVE TRACE DETECTION YES YES S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

E PAGING AND INTERCOM SYSTEMS
LOCALIZED INTERCOM & PAGING S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
MASS NOTIFICATION R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR

F VIDEO SURVEILANCE & CCTV SYSTEMS
DIGITAL IP BASED

EXTERIOR CONDITIONS R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
EXTERIOR ENTRY / EXITS R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR
PUBLIC VESTIBULE / ENTRY R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S
COURTROOMS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S
RESTRICTED ACCESS CORRIDRORS R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
RESTRICTED ACCESS DOORS / VESTIBULES R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
ELEVATORS R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
STAIRS R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
HOLDING ROOMS / HOLDING AREAS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R NR NR
SALLY PORTS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R NR NR
CLERK DESK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR

ANALOG BASED CAMERAS W UTP TRANSMISSION
EXTERIOR CONDITIONS
EXTERIOR ENTRY / EXITS
PUBLIC VESTIBULE / ENTRY
COURTROOMS
RESTRICTED ACCESS CORRIDRORS
RESTRICTED ACCESS DOORS / VESTIBULES
ELEVATORS
STAIRS
HOLDING ROOMS / HOLDING AREAS
SALLY PORTS
CLERK DESK

G MOVEMENT CONTROL
COMMAND AND CONTROL CENTER YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
SEPERATED SECURE CORRIDORS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

SECURED IN-CUSTODY MOVEMENT CORRIDOR YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
SECURED / RESTRICTED STAFF CORRIDORS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
SECURED RESTRICTED PUBLIC CORRIDORS YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

PERIM DOOR CONTROLS - MONITORED BY COMMAND / CONTROL YES YES R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
IN-CUSTODY TRANSPORT SALLY PORT YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

DOOR HARDWARE - DOOR CONTROL YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
DURESS BUTTONS & INDICATOR LIGHTS R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
CCTV / EVENT RECORDING YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

H YES YES
SUFFICIENT SPACE FOR ENTRY SEQUENCING / QUEING YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
DOOR CONTROL - TO CLEAR SPACE

RESTOOMS DOORS LOCKABLE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
ANCELLARY PUBLIC SPACE  DOORS LOCKABLE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
RESTOOMS DOORS LOCKABLE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

I
DOORS - CONTROL

BALISTICALLY TREATED - RESTRICTED ACCESS DOORS YES YES R * * * * * * R * * * * * * * * R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
PUBLIC DOOR - KEY FROM PUBLIC, EGRESS FROM COURT R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
JUDGES DOOR - ACCESS CONTROL YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
JUDGES DOOR - PEEP HOLE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
CLERKS DOOR - ACCESS CONTROL YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
CLERK'S DOOR - PEEP HOLE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
INCUSTODY DOOR - CARD ACCESS FROM SALLY YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S X X X
INCUSTODY DOOR - PEEP HOLE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

IN CUSTODY SALLY PORT - DURESS ALARM R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
BALISTICALLY TREATED DOOR YES YES R * * * * * * R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

BALISTICALLY TREATED BENCH YES YES R * * * * * * R * * * * * * * * R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
DURESS ALARM - JUDGE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
DURESS INDICATOR LIGHT - JUDGE R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
DURESS ALARM - CLERK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
DURESS INDICATOR LIGHT - CLERK R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

CCTV / SECURITY CAMERA
OVER BENCH AUDIO / VIDEO R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S R S S
OVER PUBLIC DOOR AUDIO / VIDEO R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S S S S S R S S

SINGLE MAGISTRATE RURAL COURT RURAL

PUBLIC SPACE SECURITY

JUDGES / CLERKS BENCH

COURTROOM SECURITY

ENTRY SECURITY

DESIGN REQUIRED MULTI COURT FELONY TWO-THREE COURTROOM FELONY SINGLE FELONY TRIAL COURTROOM

PRELIMINARY SUMMARY FOR SECURITY RECOMMENDATIONS

CLIENT NAME STATE OF ALASKA R ISSUE DATE 

DEPARTMENT NAME / SCOPE COURTS SYSTEM S REVISION #1

LOCATION MULTIPLE LOCATIONS X REVISION #2

LEO A DLAY PROJECT NUMBER 023-10172-000 NR REVISION #3

*

BE
TH

EL

FA
IR

BA
N

KS

JU
N

EA
U

KE
N

AI

KE
TC

H
IK

AN

PA
LM

ER

BA
R

R
O

W

D
IL

LI
N

G
H

AM

H
O

M
ER

KO
D

IA
K

KO
TZ

EB
U

E

N
O

M
E

SI
TK

A

VA
LD

EZ

C
O

R
D

O
VA

C
R

AI
G

D
EL

TA
 J

U
N

C
TI

O
N

G
LE

N
N

AL
LE

N

H
AI

N
ES

H
O

O
PE

R
 B

AY

N
EN

AN
A

PE
TE

R
SB

U
R

G

SE
W

AR
D

TO
K

U
N

AL
AS

KA

W
R

AN
G

EL
L

AN
G

O
O

N

AN
IA

K

C
H

EV
AK

EM
M

O
N

AK

FT
. Y

U
KO

N

G
AL

EN
A

KA
KE

N
AK

N
EK

ST
 M

AR
Y'

S

U
N

AL
AK

KE
ET

YA
KU

TA
T

SK
AG

W
AY

H
O

O
N

AH

A EXTERIOR & BUILDING PERIMETER SECURITY 
PASSIVE BARRIERS R

YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

R
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

R
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

EXTERIOR SITE CONDITIONS R
SETBACKS AND LANDSCAPE ARE ATTACK RESIST YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
SIDEWALKS ARE SUFFICIENT WIDTH / LOCATION YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
STAFF PARKING  - SEPERATED & SECURED YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
STAFF PATH / ENTRY - SEPARATE & SECURE YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
JUDGES PARKING - SEPERATED & SECURED YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
JUDGES PATH / ENTRY - SEPARATE & SECURE YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
DELIVERY PARKING - SEPERATED & SECURE YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
IN-CUSTODY TRANSPORT YES YES R X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

SEPERATED FROM PUBLIC TRAFFIC YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
SALLY PORT PRESENT / FUNCTIONING YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
PROPER QUEING YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
INTERCOM / VIDEO  AT ENTRY YES YES X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

B
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R NR R R R R R R R R R R R
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR S NR NR
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S S S S S S R S S R S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

YES YES R S S S S S S R S S S S S S S S R S S S S S S S S S S S S NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R S S S NR S S S S S S S S NR NR NR

C ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEMS
KEYED SECURITY LOCKS

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

YES YES
SECURE / RESTRICTED PERIMETER CONTROL YES YES

ELECTRONIC ACCESS LOCKS - KEYPADS
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S R R R
S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R X X X
SECURE / RESTRICTED PERIMETER CONTROL YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R X X X

PROXIMITY CARD - ACCESS CONTROL
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R
SECURE / RESTRICTED PERIMETER CONTROL YES YES R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

NEW GENERATION PROX CONTROL - ACCESS CONTROL

YES YES
SECURE / RESTRICTED PERIMETER CONTROL YES YES

STAFF ENTRIES TO RESTRICTED AREAS

STAIRWELL DOORS AT RESTRICTED AREAS
ELEVATORS TO RESTRICTED AREAS

DOOR POSITION SWITCHES

STAFF ENTRIES TO BUILDING
STAFF ENTRIES TO RESTRICTED AREAS
SECURED FILE ROOMS
ELEVATORS TO RESTRICTED AREAS
STAIRWELL DOORS AT RESTRICTED AREAS

SECURED FILE ROOMS

NOT REVIEWED
SUGGESTED

GLASS BREAKS

ELEVATORS TO RESTRICTED AREAS

STAFF ENTRIES TO BUILDING
STAFF ENTRIES TO RESTRICTED AREAS
SECURED FILE ROOMS
ELEVATORS TO RESTRICTED AREAS

RECOMMENDED, IF NO WEAPONS SCREENIN

RURAL

STAFF ENTRIES TO BUILDING
STAFF ENTRIES TO RESTRICTED AREAS

DRAFT
SINGLE FELONY TRIAL COURTROOM

STAIRWELL DOORS AT RESTRICTED AREAS

STAIRWELL DOORS AT RESTRICTED AREAS

NOT RECOMMENDED

SINGLE MAGISTRATE RURAL COURT

8-May-12

:

:

:

TWO-THREE COURTROOM FELONY MULTI COURT FELONY

RECOMMENDED

SECURED FILE ROOMS

PERIMETER DOORS & ROOF HATCH

ENTRYACCESS CONTROL
BLAST RESISTANCE GLAZING
CCTV EVENT RECORDING

STAFF ENTRIES TO BUILDING

RETRACTABLE BOLLARDS
GUARD BOOTHS

FENCE& PERIMETER DETECTION SYSTEM

PERIM FENCE INTRUSION
EVENT RECORDING

BUILDING INSTRUSION DETECTION SYSTEM

PERIM FENCE

SECURITY FENCING 
BOLLARD SOLUTIONS
DECORATIVE JERSEY BARRIERS

ACTIVE BARRIERS
TRAFFIC CONTROL GATES

DESIGN REQUIRED

CASE STUDY - SITKA COURTHOUSE

CLIENT NAME STATE OF ALASKA ISSUE DATE 30-Apr-12
DEPARTMENT NAME / SCOPE COURTS SYSTEM REVISION #1 :

LOCATION SITKA ALASKA REVISION #2 :

LEO A DLAY PROJECT NUMBER 023-10172-000 REVISION #3 :

1

2

3
`

4 `

`

5

6

7

8

9

10

` 11

12

13

14 `

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

PROVIDE LIGHTED EXIT SIGN INDICATING DIRECTION OF TRAVEL.

OBSTRUCTIONS IN CORRIDOR. PROVIDE CLEAR PATH OF TRAVEL FOR FULL WIDTH OF HALL TO EXITS

DOOR HAS CARD READER. APPEARS NON-FUNCTIONING. DOOR SHOULD REMAIN CLOSED AND READER MADE OPERATION

THIS DOOR HAS BEEN MODIFIED WITH ACOUSTIC GASKETS. CYLINDER MISSING PROVIDING ACOUSTIC BREECH. RECOMMEND THIS DOOR RECEIVE 
CARD ACCESS (IF SYSTEM IS ADDED) WITH READER ON COURTROOM SIDE (FAIL SAFE DURING EMERGENCY EVENT), AND PEEP SCOPE FROM 
CORRIDOR SIDE. 

IF LIBRARY REMAINS ACCESSIBLE TO GENERAL PUBLIC, DOORS SHALL BE REMOVED AND INFILLED WITH WALL, OR SHALL RECEIVE KEYED LOCKS, 
WITH FREE PASSAGE FROM OFFICE SIDE AND RESTRICTED PASSAGE FROM LIBRARY SIDE. 

IF CAMERAS ARE INSTALLED, RECOMMEND THEY BE LOCATED TO CAPTURE VIEW OF FACE OF PERSONS ENTERING CORRIDOR FROM ANY DOOR 
ALONG THE RESTRICTED ROUTE. 

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN THE BUILDING, RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON BENCH, INCLUDING WITNESS BENCH. RECOMMEND 
INSTALL OF DURESS NOTIFICATION LIGHT ON JUDGES AND CLERKS BENCH TO ALARM THAT DURESS HAS BEEN ENGAGED ELSEWHERE IN THE 

DOOR EXITS DIRECTLY INTO JUDGES CHAMBERS WHICH IS NOT RECOMMENDED. RECOMMEND TREATING DOOR WITH BALISTIC TREATMENT AND 
ADDING PEEP VIEW SCOPE TO DOOR FOR VIEWING FROM CHAMBERS. PER ILLUMINATED EXIT SIGNS, THIS DOOR IS NOT A REQUIRED FIRE EXIT. IF
PROX CARD ACCESS IS PROVIDED, RECOMMEND ADDING READER TO THIS DOOR WITH ACCESS DURING OPERATIONAL HOURS ONLY. BENCH 
DOES NOT MEET ADA ACCESSIBILITY, CONFIRM THAT ACCESSIBILITY CAN BE ACHIEVED BY USE OF OTHER COURTROOM.

, , ,
DOOR REMAIN CLOSED. RECOMMEND DOOR RECEIVE PEEP HOLE. DOOR HARDWARE INADEQUATE TO ACHIEVED REQUIRED EXIT / ADA 
COMPLIANCE

THIS DOOR IS NOT A REQUIRED FIRE EXIT, PER NUMBER OF OCCUPANTS. RECOMMEND THIS DOOR REMAIN CLOSED. IF CARD ACCESS IS ADDED, 
RECOMMEND THIS DOOR RECEIVE READER ON COURTROOM SIDE. RECOMMEND PEEP SCOPE FROM CORRIDOR INTO COURTROOM

DOOR ENABLES BREACH OF CIRCULATION INTO STAFF RESTRICTED AREA. RECOMMEND THE DOOR RECEIVE CARD ACCE

STAFF DOOR HAD ACCESS CONTROL. NOT OPERATIONAL. DOOR IS EXIT AND SHOULD BE SIGNED, CONFIRM PROPER EXIT HARDWARE. DOOR 
SHOULD RECEIVE LIGHTED EXIT SIGN FROM RESTRICTED SIDE OVER DOOR,.

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON DESK. RECOMMEND PANELS TO MITIGATE ABILITY FORR 
VISITOR TO PHYSICALL COME OVER DESK. DURESS ALARMS INSTALLED IN THIS SUITE. RECOMMEND ONE AT EACH STAFF LOCATION, AT VAULT, (IN 
ADDITION TO ONE IN CLERKS OFFICE)

RECOMMEND CONTINUATION OF WALL TO RESTRICT PUBLIC FROM APPROACHING STAFF FROM AROUND THE DESK. RECOMMEND DOOR, IDEALLY 
FULL HEIGHT WITH CARD ACCESS INTO CLERKS OFFICE SUITE AREA.

OFFICE SUITE NOT REVIEWED, DURESS ALARM SHOULD BE LOCATED WIITHIN, IF NOT ALREADY PROVIDED. ALARM INDICATOR LIGHT SHOULD BE 
PROVIDED TO NOTIFY SUITE THAT DURESS HAS BEEN ALARMED ELSEWHERE.

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND GLASS AND DOOR BE BALISTICALLY TREATED. DOORS SHOULD REMAIN CLOSED 
DURING THE DAY. REMOTE LOCKING RECOMMENDED, FROM STAFF DESK

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND GLASS AND DOOR BE BALISTICALLY TREATED. DOOR BOLT WAS JAMBED. 
RECOMMEND MODIFIED HARDWARE TO ALLOW UNRESTRICTED EXIT FROM COURTROOM, AND KEYED LOCK FROM LOBBY. KEYED LOCK SHALL 
NOT RESTRICT EXIT ABILITIES.

LIGHTED EXIT SIGN OVER DOOR APPEAR NON-OPERABLE. CONFIRM THAT DOOR HAS PROPER EXIT HARDWARE. SHOULD ALLOW FOR FREE 
PASSAGE INTO STAIRWELL AND RESTRICTED PASSAGE FROM STAIRWELL TO CORRIDOR. 

RECOMMEND CARD ACCESS AT ENTRY DOOR FOR STAFF USE AND CAMERA TO CAPTURE FACE OF PERSON ENTERING AND LEAVING THE 
FACILITY. GIVEN THE SHARED USE OF THE FACILITY WITH LOCAL ENTITY, RECOMMEND SHARED CAMERA/DVR SYSTEM AND SHARED CARD 

RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON WINDOW SURFACES. 

RECOMMEND SECURITY CAMERAS AT ENTRY, STAIR AND LOBBY

RECOMMEND RESTROOM DOORS HAVE KEY LOCK FROM LOBBY SIDE

DOOR WAS PROPPED OPEN DURING PRE-ARRAINGNMENT / COURT. RECOMMEND DOOR REMAIN CLOSED DURING USE 

PROVIDE CAMERA OVER COURTROOM DOOR TO VIEW BENCH / WITNESS AND EXIT DOORS AT JUDGES AREA.

PROVIDE CAMERA OVER JUDGES BENCH WITH VIEW OF ENTIRE WELL AND COURTROOM DOORS.

CASE STUDY - SITKA COURTHOUSE

CLIENT NAME STATE OF ALASKA ISSUE DATE 30-Apr-12
DEPARTMENT NAME / SCOPE COURTS SYSTEM REVISION #1 :

LOCATION SITKA ALASKA REVISION #2 :

LEO A DLAY PROJECT NUMBER 023-10172-000 REVISION #3 :

1

2

3
`

4 `

`

5

6

7

8

9

10

` 11

12

13

14 `

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

PROVIDE LIGHTED EXIT SIGN INDICATING DIRECTION OF TRAVEL.

OBSTRUCTIONS IN CORRIDOR. PROVIDE CLEAR PATH OF TRAVEL FOR FULL WIDTH OF HALL TO EXITS

DOOR HAS CARD READER. APPEARS NON-FUNCTIONING. DOOR SHOULD REMAIN CLOSED AND READER MADE OPERATION

THIS DOOR HAS BEEN MODIFIED WITH ACOUSTIC GASKETS. CYLINDER MISSING PROVIDING ACOUSTIC BREECH. RECOMMEND THIS DOOR RECEIVE 
CARD ACCESS (IF SYSTEM IS ADDED) WITH READER ON COURTROOM SIDE (FAIL SAFE DURING EMERGENCY EVENT), AND PEEP SCOPE FROM 
CORRIDOR SIDE. 

IF LIBRARY REMAINS ACCESSIBLE TO GENERAL PUBLIC, DOORS SHALL BE REMOVED AND INFILLED WITH WALL, OR SHALL RECEIVE KEYED LOCKS, 
WITH FREE PASSAGE FROM OFFICE SIDE AND RESTRICTED PASSAGE FROM LIBRARY SIDE. 

IF CAMERAS ARE INSTALLED, RECOMMEND THEY BE LOCATED TO CAPTURE VIEW OF FACE OF PERSONS ENTERING CORRIDOR FROM ANY DOOR 
ALONG THE RESTRICTED ROUTE. 

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN THE BUILDING, RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON BENCH, INCLUDING WITNESS BENCH. RECOMMEND 
INSTALL OF DURESS NOTIFICATION LIGHT ON JUDGES AND CLERKS BENCH TO ALARM THAT DURESS HAS BEEN ENGAGED ELSEWHERE IN THE 

DOOR EXITS DIRECTLY INTO JUDGES CHAMBERS WHICH IS NOT RECOMMENDED. RECOMMEND TREATING DOOR WITH BALISTIC TREATMENT AND 
ADDING PEEP VIEW SCOPE TO DOOR FOR VIEWING FROM CHAMBERS. PER ILLUMINATED EXIT SIGNS, THIS DOOR IS NOT A REQUIRED FIRE EXIT. IF
PROX CARD ACCESS IS PROVIDED, RECOMMEND ADDING READER TO THIS DOOR WITH ACCESS DURING OPERATIONAL HOURS ONLY. BENCH 
DOES NOT MEET ADA ACCESSIBILITY, CONFIRM THAT ACCESSIBILITY CAN BE ACHIEVED BY USE OF OTHER COURTROOM.

, , ,
DOOR REMAIN CLOSED. RECOMMEND DOOR RECEIVE PEEP HOLE. DOOR HARDWARE INADEQUATE TO ACHIEVED REQUIRED EXIT / ADA 
COMPLIANCE

THIS DOOR IS NOT A REQUIRED FIRE EXIT, PER NUMBER OF OCCUPANTS. RECOMMEND THIS DOOR REMAIN CLOSED. IF CARD ACCESS IS ADDED, 
RECOMMEND THIS DOOR RECEIVE READER ON COURTROOM SIDE. RECOMMEND PEEP SCOPE FROM CORRIDOR INTO COURTROOM

DOOR ENABLES BREACH OF CIRCULATION INTO STAFF RESTRICTED AREA. RECOMMEND THE DOOR RECEIVE CARD ACCE

STAFF DOOR HAD ACCESS CONTROL. NOT OPERATIONAL. DOOR IS EXIT AND SHOULD BE SIGNED, CONFIRM PROPER EXIT HARDWARE. DOOR 
SHOULD RECEIVE LIGHTED EXIT SIGN FROM RESTRICTED SIDE OVER DOOR,.

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON DESK. RECOMMEND PANELS TO MITIGATE ABILITY FORR 
VISITOR TO PHYSICALL COME OVER DESK. DURESS ALARMS INSTALLED IN THIS SUITE. RECOMMEND ONE AT EACH STAFF LOCATION, AT VAULT, (IN 
ADDITION TO ONE IN CLERKS OFFICE)

RECOMMEND CONTINUATION OF WALL TO RESTRICT PUBLIC FROM APPROACHING STAFF FROM AROUND THE DESK. RECOMMEND DOOR, IDEALLY 
FULL HEIGHT WITH CARD ACCESS INTO CLERKS OFFICE SUITE AREA.

OFFICE SUITE NOT REVIEWED, DURESS ALARM SHOULD BE LOCATED WIITHIN, IF NOT ALREADY PROVIDED. ALARM INDICATOR LIGHT SHOULD BE 
PROVIDED TO NOTIFY SUITE THAT DURESS HAS BEEN ALARMED ELSEWHERE.

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND GLASS AND DOOR BE BALISTICALLY TREATED. DOORS SHOULD REMAIN CLOSED 
DURING THE DAY. REMOTE LOCKING RECOMMENDED, FROM STAFF DESK

WITHOUT WEAPONS SCREENING IN BUILDING, RECOMMEND GLASS AND DOOR BE BALISTICALLY TREATED. DOOR BOLT WAS JAMBED. 
RECOMMEND MODIFIED HARDWARE TO ALLOW UNRESTRICTED EXIT FROM COURTROOM, AND KEYED LOCK FROM LOBBY. KEYED LOCK SHALL 
NOT RESTRICT EXIT ABILITIES.

LIGHTED EXIT SIGN OVER DOOR APPEAR NON-OPERABLE. CONFIRM THAT DOOR HAS PROPER EXIT HARDWARE. SHOULD ALLOW FOR FREE 
PASSAGE INTO STAIRWELL AND RESTRICTED PASSAGE FROM STAIRWELL TO CORRIDOR. 

RECOMMEND CARD ACCESS AT ENTRY DOOR FOR STAFF USE AND CAMERA TO CAPTURE FACE OF PERSON ENTERING AND LEAVING THE 
FACILITY. GIVEN THE SHARED USE OF THE FACILITY WITH LOCAL ENTITY, RECOMMEND SHARED CAMERA/DVR SYSTEM AND SHARED CARD 

RECOMMEND BALISTIC TREATMENT ON WINDOW SURFACES. 

RECOMMEND SECURITY CAMERAS AT ENTRY, STAIR AND LOBBY

RECOMMEND RESTROOM DOORS HAVE KEY LOCK FROM LOBBY SIDE

DOOR WAS PROPPED OPEN DURING PRE-ARRAINGNMENT / COURT. RECOMMEND DOOR REMAIN CLOSED DURING USE 

PROVIDE CAMERA OVER COURTROOM DOOR TO VIEW BENCH / WITNESS AND EXIT DOORS AT JUDGES AREA.

PROVIDE CAMERA OVER JUDGES BENCH WITH VIEW OF ENTIRE WELL AND COURTROOM DOORS.

Example from Assessment of 30 State Court 
Facilities, Alaska



5City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

PROJECT MANAGEMENT APPROACH

TEAM COMMUNICATION

Key to the success of the project will be continuous communication with 
all project team members. Quality design solutions must have effective and 
coordinated owner and “user” input throughout the design process. To assure 
that the project goals are met our team will lead regular team meetings with the 
steering committee, key staff/leadership, and regulatory agencies. All ‘official’ 
communication will be managed by Cindy McCleary, our team’s Project 
Manager, while the City’s team will continue to have access to each of our key 
team members and specialist resources. 

RESPONSIVENESS

All phone call, requests and e-mails will be responded to within one business 
day of receipt. A project team contact list will be developed assuring the 
owner access to rapid communication to our project team. The contact list will 
include information such as e-mails, office phones and cell phone information 
will be distributed to all pertinent State personnel for their use throughout the 
duration of the project. 

CITY STAFF INVOLVEMENT

We value the input of our clients and look to opportunities to build a project 
approach that is in unison with their goals and time availability. We typically 
ask that clients are available to conduct tours, participate in interviews and 
provide input to design solutions. We do value receiving from our clients 
copies of any past reports or documentation, and drawings / maps to guide 
our work. 

 

WORK PLAN AND TIMELINE



6City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

PROPOSED TIMELINE
Our process is based upon the duration of similar studies and comprised of 
three primary parts that build upon the previous. Prior to beginning the effort, 
we will conduct a kick-off discussion with the City to confirm the process, 
schedule, participants and activities of the effort, and will return a revised 
schedule within one business day. Each part of the work effort will be marketed 
with a mini-report to the City, documenting the activities and findings. 

We propose the following schedule:

Part A: Understanding the Existing Physical Conditions:  15-30 days
Meeting: Kickoff Meeting
Meeting: Facility Tours

Part B: Facility Condition Audit and Needs Confirmation  30-60 days
Meeting: Staff Interviews
Meeting: Review Program with Staff

 

Part C: Concepts, Costs and Funding  30-60 days
Meeting Review Concepts/Costs with Staff
Meeting: Present Final Findings to Council

 

All applicable parts will be collected and bound to provide a comprehensive 
report provided in a hard copy and PDF format. 

WORK PLAN AND TIMELINE



7City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

COMPANY HISTORY

FIRM HISTORY AND QUALIFICATIONS

LEO A DALY - EXCELLENCE BEYOND EXPECTATIONS
Strong client relationships have helped LEO A DALY become a leader in the 
design of the built environment, and one of the largest planning, architecture, 
engineering, interior design, and program management firms in the world. 
Since 1915, we have had an unyielding focus on design excellence to create 
exceptional spaces that enhance and enrich the human experience. 

Our privately held practice has approximately 800 design and engineering 
professionals in over 32 offices worldwide. Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, 
Inc. (LAN), a division of LEO A DALY, extends our capabilities in engineering, 
infrastructure consulting, and program management. The Minneapolis office 
of LEO A DALY has a staff of 60 employees including architecture, planning 
and programming, interior design, and a full-service team of structural, civil, 
mechanical, industrial, and electrical and communication engineers.

Global Experience

Our award-winning, diverse portfolio includes projects in a wide range 
of markets in more than 87 countries, all 50 US states, and the District of 
Columbia. Building Design World Magazine ranked us within the top 100 
worldwide firms, and among the top four United States firms. 

Philosophy

LEO A DALY has embraced the concepts of sustainability in building design 
and operations and has incorporated those concepts into not only our project 
designs but our management processes. We exist to serve our clients. We 
promote our clients, not ourselves. We listen to our clients before presenting 
our ideas. We balance design excellence with technical expertise. We are 
excellent project managers and thoughtful designers. 

FIRM CONTACT INFORMATION

Minneapolis Address
(All proposed LEO A DALY team 
members reside at this address)
730 Second Ave. South, Suite 1100
Minneapolis, MN 55402
P 612.338.8741 • F 612.338.4840

Contact: Cindy McCleary, Principal
D 612.341.9588 • C 612.242.4424
CAMccleary@leoadaly.com



8City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

CITY OF BISMARCK, SPACE NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR MULTIPLE DEPTS (CITY HALL, POLICE AND 
PUBLIC HEALTH)
Bismarck, North Dakota 

In 2014, the LEO A DALY team was commissioned to perform an assessment for various departments of the City. 
The departments span over multiple buildings, and staff exert much time moving between and transferring vehicles. 
Originally organized around internal department operations, the current locations require residents to move between 
multiple buildings for service and required coordinating department to do the same. Additionally, significant economic 
growth in the area has accelerated staff growth in engineering, planning, evidence and public health beyond what 
current space can support. 

LEO A DALY’s work began with a comprehensive assessment and evaluation of all facilities for possible re-organization, 
co-location or consolidation. The assessment identified critical challenges in the facilities. Tight column structures 
resulted in inconsistencies of office size, and extreme underutilization. Departments were squeezed as a result of 
existing architecture, encumbering ease of visitor use, and navigation to departments. Assessment also concluded 
ineffective security for staff and public and ineffective utilization of space, when space crunches occur elsewhere. 
Affirmation of total full future need is complete and options (including relocation and new construction) were also 
developed. 

A
RENOVATION AND NEW

1ST 2ND 3RD

EXAMPLES OF WORK



9City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

CITY OF OAKDALE MUNICIPAL CENTER, POLICE DEPARTMENT AND POLICE TRAINING  
NEEDS ASSESSMENT
Oakdale, Minnesota 

LEO A DALY was commissioned to provide a space needs analysis and master plan of the police departmental 
and police training needs on the municipal campus. As the facility was built 20 years ago, significant advances in 
technology, changes in policing philosophy and the evolution in the types of investigations conducted and evidence 
collected have challenged the facility to keep up with the need. The thorough assessment included interviews with 
front line staff, city and police leadership, identification of facility needs, options, costs and implementation schedules 
for a renovated and expanded police and police training wing of the city hall / police facility. New spaces included:
 • Dedicated investigation situation room, computer forensics and technological evidence storage space, and a space 

dedicated for staff to monitor and manage electronic data;
 • Patrol/squad operation and reconfigured roll call, report writing, and secure storage spaces for equipment, firearms, 

lockers, gun cleaning and ammo storage needs to be relocated for optimum flow;
 • The addition of tempered squad garage and tactical gear storage for improved security and longevity of equipment
 • Dedicated training rooms spaces include tactical training, classroom training, Milo simulation and confined space, 

maze training for scenario based training activities. 

EXAMPLES OF WORK



10City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

BROOKLYN CENTER, SPACE ASSESSMENT
Brooklyn Center, Minnesota 

The Brooklyn Center Civic Campus co-locates the municipal city hall (administration, finance, Building and Community 
Standards, Business Development, and Fiscal and Support services), community center, parks and recreation department, 
and public fields. The facilities were constructed over decades as a series of individual additions/modifications which 
have proven to meet space needs short term, but produce inefficient office operations, conflicting circulation, identity 
and a confusing customer experience. 

The city commissioned LEO A DALY to take a holistic look at the City Hall facility, the customer experience, and the 
Civic Center grounds to develop a long term space assessment and master plan to improve way finding, circulation and 
experience. The plan was to also instill the “progressive yet conservative” Brooklyn Center brand identity into the civic 
campus. Through the effort, efficiencies in operating strategies, including consolidated service functions, co-location 
of service desks, and consolidated shared support spaces were identified to improve office operations and customer 
services. Options were presented that minimally, moderately and extensively renovated their facility, including options 
to completely re-organize the departmental spaces within the facility to enable better security control and improved 
office environment to meet their needs. Based upon the findings of this effort, the scope of work expanded to incorporate 
adjacent buildings and the surrounding campus. 

Recommendations: Multiple options were provided, resulting in 6 primary alternatives for implementation. The 
project expanded to include interior renovation for new furniture design. The council is proceeding with initial asset 
preservation work and planning for the future implementation of the options. (2013)

EXAMPLES OF WORK



11City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

CITY OF FOREST LAKE CITY CENTER, NEW CITY HALL AND PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY
Forest Lake, Minnesota

The City of Forest Lake and the EDA commissioned LEO A DALY to design a Planned Unit Development campus 
comprised of a new 65,000 SF municipal service center and future commercial parcels, redeveloping an underutilized 
14-acre brownfield site. The project integrates multiple city departments (police, fire, city hall and community 
development) and includes the integration of multiple stakeholders. 

Relevance to your project: 
 • City hall and police station with state-of-the-art amenities; 
 • The integration, planning and programming for multi-use community spaces for engaging the public and enabling 

public use of their local government facility. The facility includes community rooms, community kitchen, break out 
areas, community roof garden, and public corridor overflow spaces the facilitate community conversations, and art 
fairs;

 • Development of the surrounding site to enable outdoor community events and to reflect the values of the local 
neighborhoods including: outdoor plaza, porch swings, outdoor break out spaces and extensive community input 
process to guide site arrangement, design and building aesthetics.

EXAMPLES OF WORK



12City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

CITY OF STERLING, ILLINOIS, CITY HALL AND POLICE DEPARTMENT 
ADAPTIVE REUSE OF HISTORIC STRUCTURE
Sterling, Illinois

LEO A DALY was hired by the City of Sterling, Illinois, to perform an assessment of total departmental needs and 
facilities, and to evaluate opportunities for the thoughtful re-purposing of an historic 81-year-old, Coliseum Building.

Through a strategic process, LEO A DALY performed needs assessments, energy efficiency assessments and workplace 
evaluations of all departmental functions and facilities. Recommendations and implementation strategies for improvements 
were developed, and a master concept was created for the repurposing of the facility. LEO A DALY also completed all 
design and engineering. Key outcomes include:
 • Preservation of the initial building investment 
 • Restoration of an iconic structure and historic features 
 • Improved operational and staffing cost efficiencies 
 • Improved occupant comfort, energy efficiency and building performance 
 • Return of a prized historic structure to public use 
 • Transformation of a viable contemporary facility.

The project was completed in 2013 and provides a contemporary office and event space for the Sterling City Hall. 

EXAMPLES OF WORK



13City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

PENNINGTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CAMPUS, CAMPUS ASSESSMENT & OFFICE BUILDING
Rapid City, South Dakota

In 2009, design team members, while at another firm, were commissioned to perform a comprehensive campus needs 
assessment for multiple departments of Pennington County, and select departments of the City of Rapid City SD. 
The assessment developed a comprehensive space program for the next 20 years of growth. Additionally, the scope 
included the exploration of optimized campus solutions, consisting of a combination of renovation and expansion to 
serve growth and more efficiently support staff and resident interactions. Departments included administration, courts, 
evidence, work release, detox and 24/7 program.

In 2010, LEO A DALY was commissioned to design the first phase of the master plan execution; and $8M stands 
alone evidence warehouse and crime lab facility to serve the combined County and City needs. In 2011, the LEO A 
DALY team was commissioned to design and implement the second phase, a new County Administration headquarters 
including the office space for legal and court support operations and offices for Rapid City departments. Phase I was 
complete in summer of 2013 and Phase II complete in winter 2014. 

Similarities to your project:
 • Strategic Facility Planning (multiple departments/multiple facilities)
 • Workplace utilization/reorganization/optimization
 • Exploration of improvements/efficiencies of workflow
 • Exploration of Opportunities for/relocation or co-location
 • Comprehensive range of solutions & costs

EXAMPLES OF WORK



14City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

MCTC AND MSU, JOINT LAW ENFORCEMENT/CRIMINAL JUSTICE CENTER
Brooklyn Park, Minnesota

The degree programs in criminal justice and law enforcement offered by Minneapolis Community and Technical College 
and Metropolitan State University are currently scattered in multiple satellite locations. Upon completion, this facility 
will co-locate the Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice academic programs in a single, collaborative environment. 
The new facility will be constructed on the campus of Hennepin Technical College which has available site area, but 
an urgent need for additional classroom space which can also be addressed in the new facility. This partnership of 
three institutions promises to be a precedent setting paradigm in finding synergies and common interests for the mutual 
benefit of several institutions. The new facility will feature state-of-the-art smart classrooms, technology enhanced 
forensic labs, a tactical simulation/simunition environment and a firing range. The simulation lab incorporates flexible 
real-world simulated environments that law enforcement graduates may encounter. 

Vehicle access, upper level mezzanines and access to an exterior simulation courtyard increase the flexibility of 
staging mock events. Simulation lab activities are digitally recorded for faculty/student review and critique in follow-up 
classroom sessions. In an effort to educate the general public in the various aspects of law enforcement training, many 
areas will incorporate viewing areas for visitors and students.

*Experience of Cindy McCleary and Joe Bower prior to LEO A DALY

EXAMPLES OF WORK



15City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

PRIOR TEAM EXPERIENCE - CITY HALLS AND POLICE

CITY OF FERGUS FALLS HISTORIC CITY HALL, FEASIBILITY STUDY 
AND RENOVATION* • FERGUS FALLS, MINNESOTA
While employed with a previous firm, Cindy McCleary and Ted Redmond 
were engaged to conduct a re-use/optimal use Master Plan study for the 
historic City Hall complex in Fergus Falls. The interior arrangement had been 
modified and morphed over a series of decades to integrate new departments 
and growing staff needs and the current condition was challenging the Cities 
ability to effectively function. In addition, growth in departments, shrinking in 
others, and the desire to investigate if effectively re-purposing the space could 
also accommodate organizations affiliated with the City such as the Chamber 
of Commerce and Economic Development Authority within a cohesive facility. 
The study defined a set of recommendations, alternative concepts, optional 
implementation plans (depending if they remain operational, and upon phased 
access to funds) and the line items and overall costs of the re-purposing effort. 
The final recommendations included preservation of the building, replacement 
of the historic windows (with coordination of grant funds and the State Historic 
Preservation Office), new mechanical service and distribution, improvements 
to lighting and electrical systems, ADA accessible upgrades and interior 
reconfiguration. The City has undergone the initial phases of work with the 
final anticipated phase for expansion in the future. 

INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY HALL AND POLICE STATION* •  

INVER GROVE HEIGHTS, MN
The City of Inver Grove Heights had outgrown their existing 30 year old facility 
and were experiencing consistent challenges with insufficient space for staff, 
poor acoustic separation, aged HVAC equipment, insufficient public service 
spaces, limited technology capacity, lack of meeting spaces and inadequate 
spaces to support police investigations, evidence and equipment. To properly 
determine current and future needs, the Design team used an intensive 
assessment and visioning process to provide the project framework. Bill Baxley 
and Ted Redmond led the Public Safety Planning, Management and Design of 
this project, beginning with an assessment and master plan for renovation. The 
effort included a Facility Inventory and Assessment, development of a Building 
Program identifying all needs and growth needs, and concepts for renovation/
expansion to satisfy full build out. The effort was highly intensive involving the 
City Council, City Manager, Staff and the City’s consultants. The result was a 
two-phase project, adding 34,000 SF and remodeling 29,000 SF, more than 
doubling the size of the building to a total of 67,000 SF. 

RAMSEY CITY HALL AND POLICE STATION* • RAMSEY, MN
Located on a pivotal site within the town center district, the 64,000 SF 
municipal center (designed by Bill Baxley and Ted Redmond) includes a city 
hall, council chambers, emergency operations center and police department 
creating a small urban park in the newly formed town center district.

The new two-story city hall wing which includes city offices, a council meeting 
room and support spaces. A portion of this wing is designed to accommodate 
a third story. A one-story police department wing which includes offices, 
holding facilities, locker rooms, and support spaces, and an enclosed squad 
garage. A portion of this wing is designed to accommodate a second story. 

*Completed by staff prior to joining LEO A DALY

Inver Grove Heights City Hall & Police*

Fergus Falls Historic City Hall *

Ramsey City Hall & Police Station*

Inver Grove Heights City Hall & Police*

EXAMPLES OF WORK



16City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

TEAM EXPERIENCE IN THE ASSESSMENT OF PUBLIC FACILITIES
These team members have planned and built some of the most successful 
public safety/city hall facilities in the metropolitan area. This experience 
provides strong bench knowledge for assessing current facilities to provide 
proven, experienced recommendations for improving operational efficiency, 
public interface, space utilization, and complying with code, ISO, FEMA, 
national security standards and best practices. 

A few of our team’s current and recent city hall/police (and holding area) 
assessments/renovations include:

 • City of Oakdale, MN Police Department

 • City of Eagan, MN Civic Center/Ice Sheet

 • City of Rosemount, MN Community Center

 • City of Hastings, MN City Hall/Police

 • City of Brooklyn Center, MN Municipal Complex Assessment

 • City of Sterling, IL Police/City Hall Assessment and Renovation

 • City of Forest Lake, MN Police/City Hall Renovation

 • City of Minneapolis MN, Multiple Municipal Facilities, Assessment and  
Renovation

 • City of Owatonna Public Utilities, MN Assessment and Renovation

 • City of Middleburg Heights OH Police Station Master Plan.

RESUMES

*Completed by staff prior to joining LEO A DALY



17City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

City of Minneapolis, Police Property 
and Evidence Warehouse, Space 
Needs Assessment
Minneapolis, MN

City of Oakdale, MN Police 
Department Needs Assessment
Oakdale, MN

Carver County Master Facilities Plan
Carver County, MN

City of Forest Lake Public Safety 
Facility - Police, Fire, City Hall, 
EOC, Dispatch, Training (Xcel 
Energy Assets Assessment)
Forest Lake, MN

City of Hastings, City Hall and Police 
Department Facility Assessment
Hastings, MN 

City of Middleburg Heights Public 
Safety Facility - Police, Fire, City 
Hall, EOC, Range Needs Assessment 
Middleburg, OH

Police Range and Training Facility, 
Washington Dulles International 
Airport
Dulles, VA 

City of Richfield MN Fire Station #2 - 
Master plan & Renovation
Penn Avenue, Richfield, MN

Minnehaha County, Juvenile Justice 
Facility, Secure and Non-Secure 
Housing, Courts and Administrative 
Functions 
Sioux Falls, SD

Washoe Tribal Justice Center
Gardnerville, NV

MCTC–MSU - MnSCU, Law 
Enforcement Training Center* 
Brooklyn Park, MN

City of Elko New Market, Multi-
Facility Assessment and Master Plan*

 • Police, Fire, Public Works, City 
Hall, Senior Center

Elko New Market, MN

City of Bismarck, City Administration 
and Police Department (include 
property/evidence and Impound) 
Space Needs Assessment
Minneapolis, MN

Hennepin County, Juvenile 
Detention Center Office/Clinic 
Renovation
Minneapolis, MN

City of Minneapolis* 
 • Police Dept. Forensic Crime Lab 

Operational Assessment
 • Police Forensics/Ballistics/Tool 

Mark Relocation
Minneapolis, MN

Cindy is the Market Sector Lead of the Regional 
Government Practice. Her experience is strongly 
rooted in the design and construction of public 
safety facilities. She is familiar with the concerns of 
local law enforcement and public safety facilities. 
Currently, Cindy her recent experience is with 
the City of Forest Lake, MN in the development 
of their new Public Safety (Police/Fire) Facility, 
the City of Hastings, MN on the space planning/
needs assessment for the City Police Department, a 
renovation to the City of Richfield, MN’s Fire Station 
No. 2, and Minnehaha County, SD, where she 
recently developed a Juvenile Justice Center Master 
Plan update. 

Cindy McCleary, AIA, LEED AP
Principal in Charge/Lead Contact

Title
Local Government Market Sector 
Lead

Firm 
LEO A DALY

Experience 
16 years

Education
MA/Architecture/1999
BA/Liberal Arts/1996

Registration
Architect - MN 46490
LEED® AP
NCARB

Awards
2011 IFDA Design Award for MCTC 
Joint Law Enforcement/Criminal 
Justice Center

RESUMES

*Experience prior to joining LEO A DALY



18City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

Cindy McCleary, AIA, LEED AP - Continued

City of Rockford City Hall & Police 
Dept. Assessment & Design*
Rockford, MN

City of Dayton, Multi-Facility 
Assessment and Master Plan*

 • Police, Fire, Public Works, City 
Hall, Senior Center

Dayton, MN
Grant County Minnesota, Sheriff’s 
Office, Social Services, Public Health 
and Emergency Management (Study 
and Needs Assessment
Elbow Lake, MN 

University of Texas, MD Anderson 
Police Department Feasibility Study*
Houston, TX

City of Brooklyn Center, City Hall 
and Campus Master Plan
Brooklyn Center, MN

State of Minnesota Department of 
Public Safety, Bureau of Criminal 
Apprehension (BCA)*

 • Investigations
 • Crime lab
 • Evidence collection
 • Criminal Justice Training
 • Administration

St. Paul, MN

Hennepin County Courts/Sheriffs, 
C-11 Court/Holding Area Safety & 
Security Improvements Master Plan
Minneapolis, MN

Hennepin County Property Services/
Sheriffs Office Court Services, 
Holding Area Safety & Security 
Assessment/Master Plan

 • Family Justice Center, 
Minneapolis

 • Eden Prairie Service Center
 • Southdale Service Center
 • Brookdale Service Center
 • Downtown Courts C-11

Various County Campuses, MN

Hennepin County Property Services/
Sheriff’s Office Court Services, 
Courts & Holding Area Remodel – 
Design Phase

 • Eden Prairie Service Center
 • Southdale Service Center
 • Brookdale Service Center
 • Downtown Courts C-11

Various County Campuses, MN

Hennepin County, Probate and 
Mental Health Court Remodel
Minneapolis, MN

Dane County Courthouse and 
Government Center*
Dane County, WI

West Central Treatment and 
Correctional Center* 

 • Pre-design/Feasibility
Fergus Falls, MN

Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, Multi-
Purpose Justice Center

 • Probation, Law Enforcement, 
Detention, Courts/Justice, 
Chemical Dependency Treatment

Fort Yates, ND

Coeur d’Alene Tribe, Justice Center
Courts/Prosecution/Defense

 • Probation, Law Enforcement, 
Detention, 911/Emergency, 
Operations Center, Social 
Services 

Plummer, ID

Olmsted County Health and Human 
Services*

 • 2100 Building Renovation
 • 2117 New Construction

St. Paul, MN

State of Minnesota*
 • Bureau of Criminal Apprehension 

(BCA) Vehicle Maintenance and 
Storage Bays

 • Minnesota Judicial Center Misc. 
Projects

St. Paul, MN

State of Alaska - Court Services 
Division

 • Multi-Facility (36) Physical 
Security Assessment

 • Physical Security Standards
36 locations, AK

State of Alaska, Ft. Yukon Court 
Remodel
Fort Yukon, AK
Olmsted County Health and Human 
Services*

 • 2100 Building Renovation
 • 2117 New Construction

St. Paul, MN

City of Fergus Falls, Multi-
Department Assessment* 

 • City Hall, Planning, Economic 
Development

 • City Hall Boiler Replacement
 • City Hall Historic Window 

Replacement
Fergus Falls, MN

City of Minneapolis* 
 • City Hall Public Space 

Assessment & Master Plan
Minneapolis, MN

Metropolitan State University, Law 
Enforcement Center Entry Remodel
St. Paul, MN

RESUMES

*Experience prior to joining LEO A DALY



19City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

Bill has over 27 years of experience in working with 
community and municipal groups on projects that 
provide meaning in the pursuit and support of civic 
and social life. Bill possesses an exceptional ability 
to articulate his client’s ideas, refine a broad set of 
community goals into a collective, set the core guiding 
principles, and create a clear architectural expression. 
He most enjoys working with engaged groups with the 
goals of providing places full of impact and meaning 
where communities can thrive. His work has been 
awarded both locally and nationally, receiving over 
32 design awards for his projects and clients. Bill’s 
approach is collaborative and interactive creating 
meaningful enduring facilities. 

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

City of Forest Lake Public Safety 
Facility - Police, Fire, City Hall, 
EOC, Dispatch, Training 
Forest Lake, MN

City of Shakopee Police Station*
Shakopee, MN 

City of St. Cloud Police 
Headquarters* 
St. Cloud, MN 

City of Edina City Hall and Police 
Station* 
Edina, MN 

City of Ramsey City Hall and Police 
Department* 
Ramsey, MN 

City of Sterling 
 • City Hall and Police Needs 

Assessment* 
 • City Hall and Police Facility 

Renovation 
Sterling, IL 

Pennington County New 
Administration, Rapid City Police, 
EOC and Evidence Buildings
Rapid City, SD

Toro New Corporate Headquarters
Bloomington, MN

Intelligence Community Campus-
Bethesda (ICC-B)
Bethesda, MN 

Minnesota Army National Guard, 
Arden Hills Readiness Center
Arden Hills, MN

City of Baton Rouge 
 • Police Headquarters, Needs 

Assessment and Master Plan* 
 • Public Safety Training Academy, 

Needs Assessment and Master 
Plan* 

Baton Rouge, LA 

City of Inver Grove Heights Public 
Safety Addition* and City Hall 
Remodel* 
Inver Grove Heights, MN 

City of Inver Grove Heights, 
Municipal Master Plan* 
Inver Grove Heights, MN 

City of Maple Grove Government 
Center* and Civic Campus and Lakes 
Development* 
Maple Grove, MN 

City of Dayton
 • Multi-Facility Assessment and 

Master Plan Police, Fire, Public 
Works, City Hall, Senior Center*

Dayton, MN

City of Mayfield, Police Study* 
Mayfield, OH 

Plymouth City Hall*

William M. Baxley, AIA
Lead Designer

Title
Director of Design

Firm 
LEO A DALY

Experience 
27 years

Education
Bachelor of Architecture

Registration
Architect - MN #23866

Maple Grove Government Center*

*Experience prior to joining LEO A DALY

RESUMES



20City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

City of Eden Prairie 
 • Design Standards*
 • Downtown Plan* 

Eden Prairie, MN 

City of Elko New Market, Public 
Facilities (City Hall, Public Works, 
Police, Fire) Master Plan*
Elko New Market, MN

City of Maple Grove 
 • Fire Station #5* 
 • Hemlock Station* 

Maple Grove, MN 

City of Plymouth City Hall and 
Public Safety Building, Addition and 
Remodel* 
Plymouth, MN 

City of Prior Lake City Hall and 
Police Study* 
Prior Lake, MN 

City of Rockport, City Hall* 
Rockport, ME 

City of Rogers 
 • City Hall and Police Department, 

Needs Assessment*
 • Police Department* 

Rogers, MN

City of Rockford, City Hall* 
Rockford, MN 

City of Savage, City Hall Needs 
Assessment Study*
Savage, MN

Connexus*
 • Anoka Public Utilities Fleet 

Maintenance Storage and 
Administrative Support

Anoka, MN

Owatonna Public Utilities Building 
Reuse and Office Renovation
Owatonna, MN

Minnesota Army National Guard, 
Armed Forces Readiness Reserve 
Center and Tactical Vehicle Storage 
and Maintenance*
Faribault, MN

Minnesota Army and Air National 
Guard, Joint Forces Headquarters 
and Tactical Vehicle Garage* 
Arden Hills, MN 

Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, Multi-
Purpose Justice Center

 • Probation, Law Enforcement, 
Detention, Courts/Justice, 
Chemical Dependency Treatment

Fort Yates, ND

Pennington County 
 • Law Enforcement, Needs 

Assessment/Master Plan* 
 • Courthouse Needs Assessment 

and Master Plan* 
Rapid City, SD 

Minnesota State Fallen Firefighters 
Memorial
St. Paul, MN 

Minnesota Army National Guard*
 • Armed Forces Readiness Reserve 

Center and Tactical Vehicle 
Storage and Maintenance

Faribault, MN

Pennington County Courthouse 
Renovation Design
Rapid City, SD

Hennepin County Property Services/
Sheriffs Office Court Services, 
Holding Area Safety & Security 
Assessment/Master plan

 • Family Justice Center, 
Minneapolis

 • Eden Prairie Service Center
 • Southdale Service Center
 • Brookdale Service Center
 • Downtown Courts C-11

Various County Campuses, MN

Coeur d’Alene Tribe , Justice Center
Courts/Prosecution/Defense

 • Probation
 • Law Enforcement
 • Detention
 • 911/Emergency Operations Center
 • Social Services 

Plummer, ID

Freeborn County Government 
Center*
Albert Lea, MN

Pine County Justice Center*
Pine City, MN*

Minnehaha County Juvenile 
Detention Center, Needs Assessment 
and Master Plan*
Sioux Falls, SD

William M. Baxley, AIA - continued

Inver Grove Heights*

RESUMES

*Experience prior to joining LEO A DALY



21City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

*Experience prior to joining LEO A DALY

Joe Bower, AIA
Senior Architect 

Years Experience 19

Role Senior 
Architect

Registration 
Architect MN 
#42605

Joe’s 19 years of experience have focused on the design and project leadership 
of higher-education, performing arts, libraries, churches, recreation centers 
and natatoriums. He also has project experience with the State Historic 
Preservation Office, Historic Preservation Commissions, and the National Park 
Service. 

Relevant Experience:
 • City of Hastings, City Hall/Police Space Needs Assessment, Hastings, MN
 • City of Bismarck Space Needs Assessment for Multiple Departments, 

Bismarck, ND
 • Minnesota Historical Society Space Use and Planning Study, St. Paul, MN 
 • Minnesota Historical Society, Fort Snelling Master Plan, Minneapolis, MN 
 • City of Brooklyn Center City Hall and Municipal Facilities Master Plan and 

Interior Updates, Brooklyn Center, MN
 • City of Forest Lake City Hall, Police and Fire Headquarters, Forest Lake MN
 • City of Bismarck ND City Hall and Police Department Space Needs 

Assessment, Bismarck, ND
 • Coeur d’Alene Tribal Administration, Police and Justice Center (Courts and 

Law Enforcement), ID
 • Flandreau Tribe Administration, Police and Justice Center (Courts and Law 

Enforcement), SD
 • MCTC Law Enforcement Training Center, Hennepin Technical College, 

Brooklyn Center, MN*

Todd LaVold, AIA
Architect

Years Experience 16

Role Project 
Architect

Registration 
Architect, MN 
#48181

Todd has over 16 years of experience in the design and management of a 
wide variety of project types, providing predesign, design and construction 
documentation as well as owner and consultant coordination as a design 
lead and project architect. His project experience includes municipal spaces, 
community centers, performance spaces, and athletic facilities.

Relevant Experience:
 • City of Forest Lake City Hall, Police and Fire Headquarters, Forest Lake MN
 • Bayport Fire Station, Bayport, MN
 • Sterling City Hall and Police Station, Renovation, Sterling, IL 
 • Pennington County Administration & Police Evidence Building, Rapid City, SD
 • Richfield Fire Station #2 Feasibility/Renovation, Richfield, MN
 • State of Alaska Court Services IDIQ 
 • Elk River Public Works Addition and Renovation, Elk River, MN*
 • Brookview Park Rehabilitation, Golden Valley, MN*
 • Burnsville Performing Arts Center, Burnsville, MN*
 • Mora City Hall Addition and Remodel, Mora, MN*
 • Sauk Rapids Fire Station, Sauk Rapids, MN*
 • St. Joseph Water Treatment Plant, St. Joseph, MN*
 • Mounds View City Hall Rehabilitation Project, Mounds View, MN*
 • Como Park Pool/Bathhouse, St. Paul, MN*

RESUMES



22City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

RESUMES

*Experience prior to joining LEO A DALY

Virginia Pappas, 
CID
Interior Designer
Years Experience 18

Role Lead Interior 
Designer

Registration  
CID MN#C02127, 
LEED Green 
Associate

Virginia is an experienced designer and holds a wealth of knowledge in a 
variety of building types, including civic, corporate, government and judicial 
areas. She is committed to providing end users with interior environments 
that meet their needs functionally and aesthetically. Working closely with the 
architectural team, Virginia helps to create comfortable, safe and beautiful 
environments.

Experience:
 • City of Hastings, City Hall/Police Space Needs Assessment, Hastings, MN
 • City of Bismarck Space Needs Assessment for Multiple Departments, 

Bismarck, ND
 • Carver County Master Facilities Plan, Carver County, MN
 • Morris Public Library Needs Assessment, Morris, MN
 • City of Forest Lake City Hall, Police and Fire Headquarters, Forest Lake MN
 • Bayport Fire Station, Bayport, MN
 • Sterling City Hall and Police Station, Renovation, Sterling, IL 
 • City of Owatonna Public Utilities, Historic Property Adaptive Re-use, 

Owatonna, MN 
 • Richfield Fire Station #2 Feasibility/Renovation, Richfield, MN
 • City of Brooklyn Center City Hall and Municipal Facilities Master Plan and 

Interior Updates, Brooklyn Center, MN
 • City of Forest Lake City Hall, Police and Fire Headquarters, Forest Lake, MN
 • Sioux Falls Federal Court House, Historic Property Renovation, Sioux Falls, SD*
 • Winnebago County Court House, Historic Property Renovation, Rockford, IL*
 • State of Minnesota Judicial Courts Center, Historic Property Renovation and 

New Construction, St. Paul, MN*

Jessie Bauldry 
Project Designer
Years Experience 15

Role Project 
Designer

Jessie has experience working on a wide variety of project types and project 
scales. Her ability to work across several different mediums, including computer 
and physical models, brings a depth to the design process. She enjoys exploring 
innovative ideas and how to make them into a reality. 

Experience:
 • City of Forest Lake City Hall, Police and Fire Headquarters, Forest Lake MN
 • Bayport Fire Station, Bayport, MN
 • Carver County, Victoria Library, Victoria, MN
 • Sterling City Hall and Police Station, Renovation, Sterling, IL 
 • Pennington County Administration & Police Evidence Building, Rapid City, SD
 • Coeur d’Alene Tribal Administration, Police and Justice Center (Courts and 

Law Enforcement), ID
 • Standing Rock Sioux Tribal Justice Master Plan, SD
 • City of Owatonna Public Utilities, Historic Property Adaptive Re-use, 

Owatonna, MN 
 • Minnesota Historical Society, Fort Snelling Master Plan, Minneapolis, MN 



23City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

REFERENCES

TEAM REFERENCES 

Minnesota Historical Society, Space Use and Planning Study
Dianne Adams-Graf, Historic Properties Manager • Phone: 651.259.3477
Minnesota Historical Society, Public Relations and Marketing • 345 Kellogg Blvd. West •St. Paul, MN 55102

City of Forest Lake City Center, New City Hall and Public Safety Facility
220 Lake Street North • Forest Lake, MN 55025 
Aaron Parrish, City Administrator • Phone: 651.464.9750
Richard Peterson, Director of Public Safety • Phone: 651.209.9725

Carver County
LEO A DALY is currently working with Carver County for their County Space Needs Assessment and Master Facilities 
Plan. Our team has also renovated the Watertown Boutique Library and the Victoria Digital Library in Carver County. 
Heidi Hoks, Carver County Library Director • Phone: 952.361.1500
Carver County Library • 4 City Hall Plaza • Chaska, MN 55318
Nick Dimassis, Beloit Public Library, WI (former Carver County Library Director) • Phone: 608.364.2905
Kevin Maas, Carver County Facilities Services Manager
Carver County • 600 East Fourth Street • Chaska, MN 55318

Grant County
LEO A DALY led the Grant County Sheriff’s Office, Social Services, Veteran’s Affairs, Extension Services, Public Health 
and Emergency Management Study and Master Facilities Needs Assessment
Todd Schneeberger, Commissioner • Phone: 218.639.7957
Grant County • PO Box 1007 • Elbow Lake, MN 56531

Hennpin County
LEO A DALY has had an ongoing relationship with Hennepin County and has completed the following recent projects:
 • Hennepin County Property Services, Sheriffs Court Division Facility Condition Assessment (5 locations)
 • Hennepin County Sobering Center
 • Hennepin County Detox Center
 • Hennepin County Juvenile Detention Center Medical Intake Unit Remodel

Anita Kempf, Project Manager • Phone: 612.348.8383
Hennepin County Property Services • 300 South 6th St. • Minneapolis, MN 55487 

Owatonna Public Utilities Pre-Design Power Plant Repurposing and Campus Reconfiguration
Mark Fritsch, General Manager • Phone: 507.446.5406
208 South Walnut Avenue • Owatonna, MN 55060

“Just a note to thank you for the great work in the space use and planning study. It was a pleasure to work 
with all of your team. The project brought clearer understandings of our current space use and needs at several 
properties and resulted in many intriguing concepts for future development of the History Center.

Diane Adams-Graf, Historic Properties Manager, Minnesota Historical Society



24City of Spring Lake Park, Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis

FEE PROPOSAL
Our compensation goals are to establish fees that fairly compensate us for the 
required services to achieve project goals while assuring that both our client 
and firm feel treated fairly – value received for dollar spent. As indicated in 
the RFP, LEO A DALY’s basic services will include assessment; space needs 
development, concept planning, cost estimation and the development of a 
report. 

Based upon our experiences in the time required to achieve this scope of 
works, we propose a lump sum fee of $16,200. 

We will work with the city to refine project deliverables, activities & schedule 
details to support the cities financial goals. 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Reimbursable expenses are in addition to the basic services fees and will be 
indicated at costs and will include: couriers, delivery, phone, travel, equipment 
rental/equipment time, presentation boards, material boards, owner review sets 
of documents and specifications, owner requested models and other expenses 
directly related to the particular project. Based upon our experience serving 
similar municipal projects of this size, we estimate the reimbursable expenses 
to be billed at cost, up to $450. 

We propose providing digital delivery of interim and final project design 
documents to an established project FTP site. Presentations will be in digital 
form and followed up with digital copies of all deliverables. For any printed 
documents requested, documents will be provided at 1.2 times the cost of the 
print to account for material costs and staff time associated with collating and 
preparing documents, plus any associated costs for delivery. 

PROPOSAL FEE





 



 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 12.21.15 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics. 
 

2015 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803135).  

This project includes lining and wye grouting in the northeast corner of the city.  The 

Contractor, Visu-Sewer, completed the final segment last week.  Terry will review 

inspection televising tapes to verify the 2015 installations.   

 
2014-2015 Street Improvement Project (193801577).      

The contractor, Valley Paving Inc., has punch-list work including several clean-up and 

seeding items, and structure adjustments remaining.  It’s likely that final work will not be 

completed until 2016.      

 

CSAH 35 Turn Lanes and Sidewalk (193802914).  

Construction started is substantially complete.  Seeding has been completed as 

“dormant” seeding due to the time of the year.              

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

Ongoing implementation items.  Training has been completed.       

 
Zoning Code Update (193803266). 

City Council adopted on December 7th.   

 
Lift Station No. 1 Equipment (pumps, generator, and control panel) (193802805). 

Equipment suppliers continue work on their items.  Generator has been delivered.    

 
Lift Station No. 1 Reconstruction (193803115). 

Preconstruction Conference with Meyer Contracting was held on December 16, 2015.  

Weather permitting; the contractor may begin construction this winter.       

 

2016 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (19380xxxx).  

Working on bid documents.        

 

2016 Street Seal Coat Project (19380xxxx). 

Working on bid documents.        

 

Other issues/projects.    
 

We continue to work on antenna modifications at both water towers.       
 

 

 

 

Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Tim Grinstead, Peter Allen, or me if you 

have any questions or require any additional information.   



 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 





 

















 













 



 1 

 

NORTH METRO TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION   

AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE  

2016 SCHEDULE OF MEETING DATES 

 

 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

Operations Committee meetings will be held the Tuesday, before the first Wednesday of 

each month, at the North Metro Community Television facility, at 12520 Polk St. NE, 

Blaine, MN 55434, beginning at 10:30 a.m. 

 

            January 5th           July 5th       

 February 2nd       August 2nd     

 March 1st         September 6th         

 April 5th            October 4th        

 May 3rd      November 1st       

 May 31st         December 6th         

 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

Executive Committee meetings will be held the first Wednesday of each 

 month at the North Metro Community Television facility, at 12520 Polk St. NE, Blaine, 

MN 55434, beginning at 6:00 P.M. 

 

            January 6th          July 6th      

 February 3rd        August 3rd     

 March 2nd         September 7th        

 April 6th          October 5th       

 May 4th         November 2nd      

 June 1st          December 7th        

 

 

 

FULL COMMISSION MEETINGS 

 

Full Commission meetings will be held the third Wednesday of every month at Spring 

Lake Park City Hall,1301 81st Ave. NE, Spring Lake Park, MN 55432,  beginning at 6:00 

PM.  

 

 January 20th        July 20th      

 February 17th        August 17th  

 March 16th          September 21st  

 April 20th         October 19th     

 May 18th         November 16th   

 June 15th          December 21st    



 



North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

Meeting Talking Points 
December 16, 2015 

 

 North Metro TV wrapped up its months long collaboration with MN Fire Hire and the Anoka 

County Fire Departments in November.  A series of 19 short videos, ranging in length from 30 

seconds to 2 minutes were produced.  Each video highlights various aspects of firefighting, from 

how it feels to hear the alarm go off, to dealing with fear, to how it feels to rescue someone.  The 

project originally came about after a request by Firefighter Mike Schwiegert for videos that could 

be used as an educational and recruitment tool.  It was a great way for North Metro TV volunteers 

to learn new skills and produce a meaningful product.  

 

 Instructor, Eric Houston, reached out to local schools to promote NMTV's on-location 

instructional services.  It is often difficult for schools to arrange permissions and transportation to 

the NMTV facility, so we have designed classes that can be brought to students at their schools.  

The response, so far, has been encouraging.  Three schools have signed up for ongoing classes.  

 

 T.J. Tronson taped Blaine High School's annual Veteran's Day program.   

 The Commission is ready to move forward on funding for a NMTV HD equipment upgrade.  The 

Commission and Operations Committee  agreed that bonding for the NMTV upgrade, at 2 million 

dollars, independent of City upgrades would be the most efficient and streamlined process.  By 

bonding for a lower amount, Cities would continue to receive larger amounts of franchise fees, 

and could then work with NMTV staff on individual HD upgrades, as each City requires.  It was 

thought to be a good solution as some Cities have already completed HD upgrades, and some are 

not ready to upgrade.  The next step is to present the bonding plan to the individual Cities for their 

approval.  A resolution is being prepared and will be considered by the Cable Commission at the 

January 2016 meeting.  If the Commission approves the resolution, it will be forwarded to Cities 

for their consideration.   

 It was recommended that the Commission's Joint Powers Agreement be amended to allow 

Member Cities to spend franchise fees, returned to them, on any "citizen related communications 

expense," instead of on cable related expenses only.  A resolution, amending the Joint Powers 

Agreement, will be provided to Member Cities for their consideration. 
 

 

PLEASE encourage your council members to call me if they have any questions you can’t answer.  I 

would be happy to answer any questions they may have.  Heidi Arnson at NMTV.  Direct line is 763-

231-2801.  Email is harnson@northmetrotv.com.   



 






























	New Business - 2016 Budget Approval.pdf
	Blank Page

	New Business - Facility Study-Space Needs Analysis.pdf
	Blank Page


